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Ms. MARIA MANOLITA C. CRUZ
Chairperson of the Board of Directors

Baliwag Water District <> \
Baliwag, Bulacan \
N LOCATOR Nl Qe qAl /
Dear Chairperson Cruz: . #
e e
We are pleased to transmit the Finaticial’Audit Report on the audit of the Baliwag
Water District, Baliwag, Bulacan fo alendar Year 2019 in compliance with Section

conducted in accordance with Interwational Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions and
we believe that it provided a able basis for the results of our audit.

43 of the Government Auditing Cv'f' he Philippines (PD No. 1445). The audit was

on Management’s ijons on the financial statements; (b) recommend agency
improvement o itics; and (c) determine the extent of implementation of prior
year’s audit re endations.

The audit wa@cte to (a) ascertain the degree of reliance that may be placed
S8

red an unmodified opinion on the fairness of presentation of the
financial Statements.

Ye audit report consists of Part I - Audited Financial Statements, Part II - Audit
Observations and Recommendations and Part III - Status of Implementation of Prior
ar’s Unimplemented Audit Recommendations.

The audit observations and recommendations were discussed with concerned
officials of the District in the exit conference held on February 11, 2020. Management’s
comments were incorporated in the report, where appropriate.

We request that a status report, thru accomplishing the attached Agency Action
Plan and Status of Implementation (AAPSI) form, on the actions taken on the audit
recommendations be submitted within 60 days from receipt of this report, pursuant to
Section 99 of the General Provisions of the General Appropriations Act for FY 2019.



We appreciate the invaluable support and coopew extended by the officials
and staff of the District during the audit engageme

&@ Very truly yours,
$ LYNN S.F. SIGANGCO
C A

Regional Director



Reason for
Partial/Delay/ { Action
Implementation Non- Taken/
Audit Audit Action Person/ Date Status of Implementation,| Action to
Ref. | Observati Recc dation n pt. Responsible From To Impl tation if applicable | be Taken

.

W

AgeéncySign-off:

Q Name and Position of Agency Officer Date

Note: Status of implementation may either be (a) Fully Implemented; (b) Ongoing; (c) Not implemented;
(d) Partially Implemented; or (e) Delayed
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Mr. ARTEMIO F. BAYLOSIS kol il 5
General Manager &
BY e

Baliwag Water District \ :’::D:f_
Baliwag, Bulacan \\@Tt' 5 - #doRR
\ CooaTom un: 00 ’L'B-v’/'
Dear Manager Baylosis: pd
A

i
on the audit of the Baliwa

We are pleased to transmit the Financial Audit
Water District, Baliwag, Bulacan for the Calendar Year compliance with Section
43 of the Government Auditing Code of the Philigpinés (PD No. 1445). The audit was
conducted in accordance with International Stan@ar Supreme Audit Institutions and
we believe that it provided a reasonable basis for the, results of our audit.

the degree of reliance that may be placed
cial statements; (b) recommend agency
rmine the extent of implementation of prior

The audit was conducted to (a) asc
on management’s assertions on
improvement opportunities; and (c)
year’s audit recommendations.

We rendered an ed opinion on the fairness of presentation of the
financial statements.

The audit onsists of Part I - Audited Financial Statements, Part II — Audit

Observations and ommendations and Part III - Status of Implementation of Prior
%led Audit Recommendations.

Year’s Uni

0, : édit observations and recommendations were discussed with concerned
officia @ e District in the exit conference held on February 11, 2020. Management’s
comments were incorporated in the report, where appropriate.

We request that a status report, thru accomplishing the attached Agency Action
Plan and Status of Implementation (AAPSI) form, on the actions taken on the audit
recommendations be submitted within 60 days from receipt of this report, pursuant to
Section 99 of the General Provisions of the General Appropriations Act for FY 2019.



We appreciate the invaluable support tion extended by the officials
and staff of the District during the audit engag

?\ Very truly yours,

O LYNN %I NGCO
?\ Regional Director
&\ s



BALIWAG WATER DISTRIGT -
Baliwag, Bulacan \Q
AGENCY ACTION PLAN and Q~
STATUS of IMPLEMENTATION &
Audit Observations and Recommendatighs
For the Calendar Year 2019

As of \
Agency Action Plan Q Reason for

et Partial/Delay/ | Action

plementation Non- Taken/

Audit Audit Action Person/ Status of Implementation,| Action to

Ref. | Observations | Recommendations Plan Dept. Responsibl T To Impl tatiof if applicabl be Taken

P VS
i :
Agency sign-off: ? v
ition of Agency Officer Date

Note: mplementation may either be (a) Fully Implemented; (b) Ongoing; (c) Not implemented;

(N y Implemented; or (¢) Delayed
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February 13, 2020 «
Ms. LYNN S.F. SICANGCO

Regional Director \
COA Regional Office No. III &

City of San Fernando, Pampanga

Dear Director Sicangco: \6

We are pleased to submit herewith the Financial @eport on the audit of the
Baliwag Water District, Baliwag, Bulacan for the Calgndar r 2019 in compliance with
Section 43 of the Government Auditing Code of th ines (PD No. 1445).

on management’s assertions on the fi ial “Statements; (b) recommend agency
improvement opportunities; and (c) d the extent of implementation of prior

year’s audit recommendations.
The attached report corfSists\of Part I - Audited Financial Statements, Part II -
en

Audit Observations and Rgeommendations and Part III - Status of Implementation of
Prior Year’s Unimplemented it Recommendations.

We conduct: dit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme
Audit Institutio believe that it provided a reasonable basis for the audit results.
We rendere dified opinion on the fairness of presentation of the financial
statements. d\

owledge the invaluable support and cooperation extended by the officials

a% of the District.

The audit was conducted to (a) asce& ree of reliance that may be placed
in

Very truly yours,

PRISC AﬁSGUERRA
OIC - $upervising Auditor



Republic of the Philippines
COMMISSION ON AUDIT

Regional Office No. III
City of San Fernando, Pampanga

Tel No. (045) 455-4274 + Telefax No. (045) 455-4273 » Website: www.coa.gov.ph «

Ms. PRISCILA R. ESGUERRA & 2
OIC - Supervising Auditor
CGS A - Water Districts Audit Group
This Region \
Madam: Q
We are pleased to submit here%thg Financial Audit Report on the audit of the

Baliwag Water District, Baliwag, B for the Calendar Year 2019 in compliance with
Section 43 of the Government Auditing €éde of the Philippines (PD No. 1445).

The audit was conduct: ) ascertain the degree of reliance that may be placed
on management’s assewtio n the financial statements; (b) recommend agency
improvement opportuniti d (c) determine the extent of implementation of prior

year’s unimplemented audi®recommendations.
The ;éport consists of Part I - Audited Financial Statements, Part II —

Audit Obse and Recommendations and Part Ill - Status of Implementation of
Prior Yea nimplemented Audit Recommendations. The audit observations and
reco ions were discussed with the officials concerned in the exit conference held
on NK 11, 2020.

VWe conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme
dit Institutions and we believe that it provided a reasonable basis for the audit results.

@ We acknowledge the invaluable support and cooperation extended by the officials
and staff of the District.

Very truly yours,

MA D. CASTILLO
Audit Team Leader



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ,

A. Introduction

The District was created pursuant to Presidential Decree No. 198, otherwise kno the
“I ocal Water Utilities Act of 19737, as amended by PD Nos. 768 and 1479, and

of the Local Sangguniang Bayan Resolutlon No. 011 series of 1988. On July 198
Conditional Certificate of Conformance (CCC) No. 407 was issued ater
Utilities Administration (LWUA) to formalize its establishment. is the
accreditation of LWUA to a newly-formed water district to operatg/undgr the standard
specification. &

Since 1992, by virtue of the Supreme Court En Banc decisio\e . 95237-38 (Davao

City Water District, et al. vs. CSC et al.), water distg declared government
owned and/or controlled corporation with original chai as such they are placed
under the jurisdiction of the Civil Service Comm1 and €ommission on Audit.

As of December 31, 2019, the District has 24 statlons which serve 27 barangays
with 32,477 total active service connecu s’mct is categorized as Category “A”
water district pursuant to the Local Wate rict Manual on Re-categorization in March
2017.

The District was formed for of acquiring, installing, improving, maintaining
and operating water supply an ibution system for the residents of Baliwag, Bulacan.

The District’s Board of ireCtors is composed of the following:

Position/Designation Sector
Chairman Civic
Vice-Chairman Education
Secretary Women

&? toria G. Canoza Treasurer Professional
?& lorido S. Santos Member Business
1str1ct has 159 personnel and headed by General Manager Artemio F. Baylosis.

B. Financial Highlights

The comparative analysis of the District’s Financial Position and Results of Operation for
AY ANT10O and IN1Q ara chavun nn the nevt naoce



2019 . 2018

Financial Position

Assets P434,853,049.09 P410,042,863.21

Liabilities 179,853,056.78 194,734,093.66

Equity 254,999,992.31 215,308,769.55
Results of Operation

Income 231,627,322.62 213,561,

Expenses 210,344,966.94

Net Income 21,282,355.68

C.  Scope of Audit «

We conducted an audit of the financial transactions aj @tions of the Baliwag Water
District for the year ended December 31, 2019 onassaniplifig basis in accordance with the
International Standards of Supreme Audit InstitQ and Corporate Government Sector
Memorandum dated October 04, 2018 presciibing fof the General Audit Instructions for
the conduct of CY 2019 Audit of Water and for other matters. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained 1 ient to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
The audit was conducted to (a) as i degree of reliance that may be placed on
Management’s assertions on &

ncial statements; (b) recommend agency
improvement opportunities; @ etermine the extent of implementation of prior

year’s audit recommendati$
D. Indepen%udl r’s Report
The Auditor§n an unmodified opinion on the fairness of presentation of the

financial stat of the District for the year ended December 31, 2019.

E. \ mary of Other Significant Audit Observations and Recommendations

Vher significant audit observations noted during the audit and the corresponding

?ecommendations are the following:
b 1.

The accuracy, existence and completeness of Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE) account with carrying amount of P381,980,635.20 were doubtful due to the
inclusion of (a) intangible assets with carrying amount of P974,650.92 which were
previously recognized as Information and Communication Technology Equipment
account; and (b) semi expendable items costing below P15,000.00, contrary to the
provisions of Annex A of COA Circular 2015-010. Likewise, Report on the Physical
Count of PPE (RPCPPE) was not prepared in accordance with the provisions of Sections
490 and 55.a.1a of the GAAM Volume I and III, respectively, thus, no reconciliation was

1i



made between the PPE Lapsing Schedule and RPCPPE ffom Finance and General
Services Division. (Observation No. 1)

We recommended that the General Manager instruct the Corporate Budget Analyst B
through the OIC-Department Manager — Finance to prepare the necessary adjusting
entries guided by COA Circular No. 2015-010 dated December 01, 2015 to reclassify to
the proper accounts the intangible assets with total acquisition cost of £9,050,875.28 and
semi expendable items amounting to P173,555.00 that were included in the PPE

Officer to prepare and submit the Report on the Physical Count of PPE in compliange
with Section 490 of the GAAM, Volume I; and (b) (i) direct the Corporate Bu
Analyst B and designated Property Officer to reconcile the PPE balances per a ti

records and the Report on the Physical Count of PPE; and (ii) invgStigaie the
discrepancies noted, if any, and make the necessary adjustments and recldssiication to

the proper accounts.

Z. The District did not recognize as payable the unpaid es due to the

accounts
We also recommended that the General Manager (a) instruct the designated Propc:b&

Commission on Audit — Region III pertaining to CY 20138 it amounting to
P217,554.74, thereby understating the Accounts Payable : ating the Retained
Earnings contrary to paragraphs 27 and 28 of the Philippi ting Standards (PAS)
1 and Chapter 4 of the International Financial Reporti ds (IFRS) Framework for
Expenses. (Observation No. 2)

We recommended that the General Manager ct he OIC — Department Manager,

Finance to (a) require the Corporate Budget to record the amount due to COA
Region III amounting to P217,554.74 bas hi b1 lings provided by the ATFS and the
eventual settlement thereof, and (b) or closely the compliance of the District
regarding the recognition of audlt nd prompt settlement to prevent the occurrence of
similar conditions in the future. -

3. The collectability We accounts amounting to P4,702,616.80 and active

receivables from the lity of Baliwag of £6,142,590.57 accumulated to an
alarming level beca e absence of effective collection policy and negotiations with
the Municipality was‘still in process, respectively; thus, depriving the District of the
opportunity cost ou the funds tied up to these receivables contrary to Section 64 of the
Government ing and Auditing Manual, Volume I. (Observation No. 3)

We reced that the General Manager instruct the Division Manager — Customer
Accounts afid the OIC — Department Manager Finance to (a) send demand letters to
verify the existence of the concessionaires with inactive accounts in their indicated
addresses; (b) strengthen efforts to collect the inactive accounts receivables including
those with existing accounts and take appropriate legal action, if necessary; (c) fast track
the preparation of the request for write-off of dormant accounts from the Commission on
Audit , after all measures to collect had been futile pursuant to COA Circular No. 2016-

1i1



005 dated December 19, 2016; and (d) coordinate/discuss constantly with the incumbent
Municipal Mayor the legal processes on the possible offSetting of the value of the
properties transferred as in lieu share to the District for the unpaid water bill; otherwise,
exert utmost efforts to collect the unpaid active accounts totaling 6,142,590.57..

4, The District did not develop policies, prepare plans and display information on
disasters contrary to Section 4, Rule 1 of the General Provisions of the Implementing
Rules and Regulations of RA No. 10121. As a result, the awareness/consciousness and
understanding of disasters by its personnel and concessionaires were not promoted.
(Observation No. 4)

We recommended that the General Manager thru the OIC-Buildings an@,m S
Division (a) prepare policies, plans and display complete information r\ like
NDCC alerto tips charts at customer’s waiting areas and office bulleti rds; and (b)
conduct briefings/alert drills on calamities to assess the preparednesyrofufs Personnel in
the event of calamities. &

F. Summary of Audit Suspensions, Disallowances rges

Prior years’ audit disallowances issued for CYs,2012 2018 transactions totaled

P26,166,736.87 with settlements made in the t unt of 550,000.00; leaving a
balance of $25,616,736.87 as of Decem N2019. There were disallowable
disbursements amounting to P4,054,429.38 audit of CY 2019 transactions.

G. Status of Implementati %Prior Year’s Unimplemented Audit
Recommendations

Of the 24 audit recommendations embodied in the CY 2018 Financial Audit Report, 16
were fully implemented 4nd€ight were partially implemented.

?\
N
QX

v
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Republic of the Philippines v
COMMISSION ON AUDIT
Commonwealth Avenue, Quezon City

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors

Baliwag Water District «
Baliwag, Bulacan \

Unmodified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Bahwag tnct Baliwag,
Bulacan, which comprise the Statement of Financial Posmo ecember 31, 2019,
and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statemen ges in Equlty and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and€] Fmanmal Statements,
including a summary of significant accounting polici “

In our opinion, the accompanying financial
respects, the financial position of Baliwag
its financial performance and its cash fl

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).
Bases for Unmodified Opinion

We conducted our audi‘t@or ce with International Standards of Supreme Audit

tehdents present fairly, in all material
istrict as at December 31, 2019, and
year then ended in accordance with

Institutions (ISSAIs). O nsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities/for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are in of the District in accordance with the Code of Ethics for

i gether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
ts, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance Na se requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufﬁc ppropriate to provide a bases for our opinion.

Wnes of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

of financial

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the District’s financial
reporting process.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemerys <

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether @ncial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to, fr or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasondble asstrance is a high level
of assurance, but is not guarantee that an audit conducted in agcordance with ISSATIs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, tatements can arise from fraud

or error and are considered material if, individ the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the econo @ ns of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

COMMISSION ON AUDIT $§

By:
PRISC mSG
OIC - Sypervisin; it

February 11, 2




o

BALIWAG WATER DISTRICT s
Baliwag, Bulacan
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Figures for CY 2018)

A

Note 2019 018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 P 17,462,32220 P 8467,177.53
Receivables, Net 5 049/955.09 18,102,533.56
Inventories 6 ,893.85 7,276,126.43
Other Assets 7 ,983 .46 3,494 ,688.65
Total Current Assets ,156,154.60 37,340,526.17
Non-Current Assets
Investment in Time Deposits - Local Currenc 716,259.29 712,096.76
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 9 381,980,635.20 371,990,240.28
Total Non-Current Assets 382,696,894.49 372,702,337.04
TOTAL ASSETS $434,853,049.09 $£410,042,863.21
LIABILITIES AND EQ
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

$?“

Financial Liabilities 10 P 22330,642.09 P 23,511,581.99

11 3,133,565.22 2,739,297.83

25,464,207.31 26,250,879.82

10 105,008,098.10 124,256,377.52

ncy Payables 11 3,420,845.00 3,420,845.00

T Liabilities 12 4911,213.07 4.840,012.37

Wr Deferred Credits 13 3,912,671.33 960,308.55

v ve Benefits Payable 14 19,625,306.75 15,612,050.69

Other Payables 15 17,510,715.22 19,393,619.71

A Total Non-Current Liabilities 154,388,849.47 168,483,213.84

TOTAL LIABILITIES 179,853,056.78 194,734,093.66
EQUITY

Contributed Capital 20,883,551.52 20,883,551.52

Retained Earnings 234,116,440.79 194,425,218.03

TOTAL EQUITY 254,999,992.31 215,308,769.55

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $434,853,049.09 $410,042,863.21

The notes on pages 8 to 30 form part of these statements.



BALIWAG WATER DISTRICT *
Baliwag, Bulacan
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended December 31,.2019
(With Comparative Figures for CY 2018)

Note 2019 2018
INCOME K‘
Business Income 16 P227,599,973.37  B212,6279193.
Other Gains 17 119,115.24 5,81184
Other Non - Operating Income 18 3,908,234 .01 .98
TOTAL INCOME 231,627,322.62 561,683.39
EXPENSES &
Personnel Services 19 82,325,703, 71,625,369.95
Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses 20 96,5 .6 88,945,177.39
Financial Expenses 21 : &.40 8,766,525.57
Non-Cash Expenses 22 @1 25.81 29,798,433.59
TOTAL EXPENSES 210,344,966.94 199,135,506.50
NET INCOME %1,282,355.68 P 14,426,176.89

The notes on pages 8 to 30 form part of these statements.



.

BALIWAG WATER DISTRICT

Baliwag, Bulacan

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

CONTRIBUTED RETAINED 1@
CAPITAL EARNINGS
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2018 $20,883,551.52  P194,425,218.03 308§769.55
Add(Deduct):
Net Income for the year 0.00 21,282,355.6& ,282,355.68
Prior Year's Adjustments 0.00 18,408,867.08 18,408,867.08
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2019 $20,883,551.52 P234,11 $254,999,992.31

The notes on naces 8 to 30 form vart of these statements.



BALIWAG WATER DISTRICT
Baliwag, Bulacan
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Figures for CY 2018)

Note 2019
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Inflows
Additional Petty Cash Fund P 31,000.00 P x 0
Cash Debit Adjustments 51,742.47 .00
Collection of Accounts Receivable 211,185,957.13 1974016.,105.10
Collection of Service Fees and Charges 12,033,115.60 11,105,256.00
Collection of Other Receivables 3,215,504. 4,261,686.28
Proceeds from Sale of Materials 409.0 417,677.00
Refund of Cash Advances 7\ 709,632.17
Miscellaneous Receipts 54 8 724,773.39
Cancellation of Stale Check .00 1,604,019.63
Restoration of Unreleased Check 316,235.91 2.464,303.63
Total Cash Inflows o 9,121.75 218,303,453.20
Cash Outflows
Cash Credit Adjustment 68.,556.42 0.00
Payment of Personnel Services 36,257,310.22 32.590,311.91
Payment of MOOE 92.011,851.30 83,730,886.73
Payment of Accounts Payable 15,956,328.79 16,796,570.22
Payment of Cash Advances 6,720,789.91 5,304,228.76
Replenishment of Working Fund 310,189.26 154,617.26
Remittances - GSIS, BIR, PhilHealth, 15,817,386.31 20,669,541.29
Contribution to Provident Fund 14,908,638.07 6,192,887.83
Miscellaneous Disbursements 6,142,160.71 3,290,244 .47
Returned Checks issued by, concessiondires 0.00 62,786.00
Reversal of Unreleased C 371,157.95 2,653,826.80
Total Cash Outflows 188,564,368.94 171,445,901.27
Net Cash Provided by ) Operating Activities 44,394,752.81 46,857,551.93
Cash Flows from ing Activities
Cash Inflows \Dw
ving osits 9,916.89 7,142.67
pan Availments 2,975,085.00 0.00
nflows 2,985,001.89 7,142.67
ase/Construction of PPE 10,089,103.76 11,419,013.68
otal Cash Outflows 10,089,103.76 11,419,013.68
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (7,104,101.87) (11,411,871.01)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Cash Outflows
Finance Charges (104,087.28) (7,937.47)
Payment of Principal/Interest (28,191,418.99) (33,614,991.95)
Total Cash Qutflows (28,295,506.27) (33,622,929.42)
Cash Used in Financing Activities (28,295,506.27) (33,622,929.42)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,995,144.67 1,822,751.50
Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1 8.467,177.53 6,644,426.03

P 17,462,322.20

Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31 4

P 8,467,177.53

The notes on pages 8 to 30 form part of these statements.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Agency Information and Authorization for Issue of the Financial Statements

The District was created pursuant to Presidential Decree No. 198, otherwise known as t
“Local Water Utilities Act of 1973”, as amended by PD Nos. 768 and 1479, and by vi&
of the Local Sangguniang Bayan Resolution No. 011 series of 1988. On July 6, 19897 the
Conditional Certificate of Conformance (CCC) No. 407 was issued by Lo l@r
Utilities Administration (LWUA) to formalize its establishment. This & e

accreditation of LWUA to a newly-formed water district to operate un: dard
specification.

Since 1992, by virtue of the Supreme Court En Banc decision, GR 237-38 (Davao
City Water District, et al. vs. CSC et al.), water districts were dec ernment owned
and/or controlled corporation with original charter, and as s re placed under the
jurisdiction of the Civil Service Commission and Commissio udit.

water district pursuant to the Local Water Distfict 1 on Re-categorization in March
2017.

As of December 31, 2019, the District has 24 pumpi @Hﬂs which serve 27 barangays
with 32,477 total active service connections. Ths@3 is categorized as Category “A”

The District was formed for the purposéofifacquiring, installing, improving, maintaining
and operating water supply and distributien system for the residents of Baliwag, Bulacan.

The District’s Board of Dire@ composed of the following:

Position/Designation Sector
Chairman Civic
Vice-Chairman Education
Secretary Women

Treasurer Professional

l\?%ﬁ S. Santos Member Business
T \

has 159 personnel and headed by General Manager Artemio F. Baylosis.

1.1 Authorization for Issue of the 2019 Financial Statements

The financial statements of the District for the year ended December 31, 2019 were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on February 11, 2020 as reflected in the
Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements signed by the BOD
Chairman.



2. Summary of Significant Accounting Systems and Policies

2.1 Basis of Financial Statements Presentation

The financial statements of the District have been prepared using historical cost basis. The
financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (), which is the District’s functional
and presentation currency. All values are rounded off to two decimal places, pt when

otherwise indicated. @

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the District prepared its finangi ments (FS)
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principle & ilippines and
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

2.2  Statement of Compliance @

The financial statements were prepared in co \thh PFRS, which includes

statements named PFRS, Philippine Account tandards (PAS), Philippine

Interpretations of International Financial R$ terpretations Committee (IFRIC)
ibed n C

issued by the Financial Reporting Stan cil and Revised Chart of Accounts
(RCA) for Government Corporations pr: OA Circular Nos. 2015-010 and 2016-
006 dated December 1, 2015 and De , 2016, respectively.

ting Policies

2.3 Summary of Significant

The significant accounti that have been used in the preparation of the District’s
financial statements are s ized below.

2.3.1 Current ver@lcurrent Classification

The District presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current or ent classification. An asset is current when it is:

. Ex@ed to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating

>

d primarily for the purpose of trading;
+\} Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when it is:
« Expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» Expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or




* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Wability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The District classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent. .

2.3.2 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either: &

* In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market fo et or

liability. Q‘
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible t&Dl trict. The fair

value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption§ that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that m icipants act in their

economic best interest. Q

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into #€count a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using th in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that wo e asset in its highest and best use.

The District uses valuation techniques th&a ropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to ure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing thé u observable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows,
based on the lowest level inpuf that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:.

* Level 1 - Quot W’usted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

 Level2- t10n techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair Valu%i, rement is directly or indirectly observable

» Level§ - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fa easurement is unobservable

s and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a
rectufing basis, the District determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the District has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

2.3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash in bank earns interest at the prevailing bank &
deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readi
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less

dates of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 2\

2.3.4 Financial Instruments &
Date of recognition 6

The District recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in t nt of financial
position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the ent. In the case
of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, rec@ and derecognition, as

applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.

Initial recognition of financial instruments @

Financial instruments are initially recognized at faig value, which is the fair value of the
consideration given (in case of a financial asset) oxreceived (in case of a financial liability).

Except for securities at Fair Value thro r Loss (FVPL), the initial measurement
of financial instruments includes transac osts.

ents in the following categories: financial assets
oans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM)
) financial assets and other financial liabilities. The
ose for which the investments were acquired and whether
e market. Management determines the classification at initial
llowed and appropriate, reevaluates this classification at every

The District classifies its financialiins
and financial liabilities at
investments, available for
classification depends on
these are quoted in

recognition and, wher
reporting date V
AsatDe 1,2019 and 2018, the District does not have financial assets and financial
liabilities L, HTM investments, and AFS.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that are not quoted in an active market. These are not entered into with the
intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS financial assets
or financial assets at FVPL. These are included in current assets if maturity is within twelve
months from the reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
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After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequentlysmeasured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in “Interest
income” in profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment of such loans and receivables
are recognized as “Provision for probable losses and doubtful accounts” in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, this category includes the District’s ReceivA

account. < ,
Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortized Cost %\

These are the financial liabilities which are not designated at FVPL. &1 liabilities
not designated as FVPL are measured at amortized cost after initial suretent using the
effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taka to account any
effective interest

discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral
rate.

Included in this category are the District’s accountg’payable, accrued expenses, inter-
agency payables, loans payable, other payab guarantee deposits payable to

at amortized cost using the effective inger thod. The amortization is included in the

customers.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing r&borrowings are subsequently measured
interest expense in the District’s Sta; t f Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets

A financial asset ( hge applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of .

financial assets'x gnized when:
e Then ive cash flows from the asset has expired;

n'to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-

” arrangement; or

. istrict has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a)
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control

of the asset.

When the District has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a “pass-through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognized to the extent of the District’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
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involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the District could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged,

cancelled, or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another financial liability from the s

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are subsl@
iginal

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of t '
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respe n

amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
Loans and receivables 6&
For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Dis % assesses whether

objective evidence of impairment exists individually fi al assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets are not individually
significant. If the District determines that no objectiv ence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether signifiednt or not, it includes the asset in

a group of financial assets with similar credit ris ctetistics and collectively assessed
to
the

(4=}

for impairment. Those characteristics are reley, estimation of future cash flows for
groups of such assets by being indicative of btors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the ass ing evaluated. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for whichan irment loss is, or continues to be recognized,
are not included in a collective assegsmghtfor impairment.

impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
etween the assets’ carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated fut flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The carryi t of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account
and the amount of charged to profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
recognized base original effective interest rate of the asset. Receivables, together
with the asso% owance accounts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect

If there is objective evidence tHa
loss is measured as the diffe

of future rgcov

If, 1 guent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
becau an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed
its amortized cost at the reversal date.

13




2.3.6 Impairment of Financial Assets

.

The District assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if; there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Objective evidence of impairment may include indications that the
borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that ther

is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears&

customers, evidence of impairment may include non-collection of water bills
sending series of demand letters to delinquent concessionaires.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the District has no impaired ﬁnanci@

economic condition that correlate with default. For the District’s receivabl%

2.3.7 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the 4@ amount reported in the
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a custe enforceable legal right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intentio leson a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

238 Classification of Financial Instrumentsbetweéett Debt and Equity

A financial instrument is classified as debti vides for a contractual obligation to:

« Deliver cash or another ﬁnanci@ to another entity; or

that are potentially unfavera the District; or
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another

ber of own equity shares.

« Exchange financial assets ?{0 il liabilities with another entity under conditions -

« Satisfy the obligation
financial asset for

ve an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another
its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a

If the District doe
financial asset

financial %;
2.3.9 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV). Cost is determined
using the moving average method.
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Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for the utilization or consumption
in the ordinary course of operations of the District.

2.3.10 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impairment in value. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties, taxes and,any
directly attributable costs of bringing the PPE to its working condition and locatio its
intended use, including capitalized borrowing costs incurred during the cc@ct

period.

Expenditures incurred after the PPE have been put into operation, s Xairs and
maintenance, are normally charged to operations in the period in the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that f&penditures have
resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected’t obtained from the
use of an item of PPE beyond its originally assessed st T performance, the
expenditures are capitalized as additional cost of the relat

Depreciation and amortization of PPE commences oneg the PPE are available for use and
are calculated on a straight-line basis over the es i@eﬁﬂ lives (EUL) of the PPE as

follows:
Category & Number of years
Office furniture and eq nt 5
Transportation equip urv 7
Machinery and eq t 10
Building and ot ctures 30

The EUL and depreciaﬁu@mortization method are reviewed periodically to ensure
that the period and hi I depreciation and amortization are consistent with the

-expected pattern ofgc ¢ benefits from items of PPE.

Fully depreci are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no
further depre&o are charged to current operations.

When \/retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and amortization and accumulated impairment, if any, are removed from the
% and any resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged against current operations.

Recognition

An item is recognized as PPE if it meets the characteristics and recognition criteria as a
PPE. The characteristics of PPE are as follows:
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*

« Tangible items;

« Are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others,
or for administrative purposes; and

« Are expected to be used during more than one reporting period.

An item of PPE is recognized as an asset if:

will flow to the entity;
+ The cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably; and

» The cost is at least 15,000.00. Q\

Measurement at recognition

An item recognized as PPE is measured at cost. Cost includes the follo@

« Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundab@nase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates;

« Expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisitim@w'tems; and

 Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and remo h&item and restoring the site

» It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the itemQ

on which it is located, the obligation for which anentity in€urs either when the item is
acquired, or as a consequence of having used item“during a particular period for
purposes other than to produce inventories dimng that period.

Measurement after recognition

After recognition, all PPE are state@st less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

P%r? required to be replaced at intervals, the District
ividual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
a 'major repair/replacement is done, its cost is recognized in
E as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

When significant parts of
recognizes such parts as i

accordingly. Likewis

the carrying amount (N
All other repai intenance costs are recognized as expense in surplus or deficit as
incurred. @

Depreciatio

Each part of an item of PPE with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the

item is depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each period is recognized as
expense unless it is included in the cost of another asset.
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Initial recognition of depreciation

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use such as when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. For simplicity and to avoid proportionate computation, the depreciation is
for one month if the PPE is available for use on or before the 15th of the month. H er,
if the PPE is available for use after the 15th of the month, depreciation is for the S@dl

month. \

Depreciation method

The straight line method of depreciation is adopted unless %@m hod is more

appropriate for Entity operation.

Estimated useful life Q
The District uses the life span of PPE prescribed OA™"n determining the specific
estimated useful life for each asset based on its e

Residual value

The District uses a residual value equiv?t\ﬁ least ten percent (10%) of the cost of the
PPE. $ : '

Impairment

An asset’s carrying is” written down to its recoverable amount, or recoverable
service amount, if 2%5 carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
S

amount or recov: ice amount.

DerecognitioN

The D ecognizes items of PPE and/or any significant part of an asset upon disposal
or o future economic benefits or service potential is expected from its continuing
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
n the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognized.

2.3.11 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated

4 r~



intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit or loss when 1t is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the ex&
category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.
@

r
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit ( Xl. The
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whethex’theNindefinite life
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinit&{o finite is made

on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying angount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss when th@s derecognized.

Intangible asscts with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but a

2.3.12 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The District assesses at each reporting date Whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, 0 annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the District estimates the asset'§ recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s o s fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. It is determined for an indiwvigual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely in ent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where
the carrying amount of anasSef or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired arig' en down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing valu e, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pré*axdiscount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and therisks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cost to sell, an
approp% te tion model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation

ther fair value indicators. Impairment losses of continuing operations are
in profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of the

multipl

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
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previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there*has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss unless
the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as sevaluation
increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge Qusted in
future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any re@' 1 value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the District has no reporte@}d non-financial

assets. &
2.3.13 Revenue Recognition 6

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probabfe that the economic benefits will flow
to the District and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment

is received. Revenue is measured at the value” of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractua terms of payment and excluding taxes

or duty.

2.3.14 Income from Waterworks Sys

Water revenue are recognize(ifgh the related water services are rendered. Water is billed

every month according to t ycles of the customers. As a result of bill cycle cut-off,
monthly service revenue d but not yet billed at end of the month are estimated and
accrued. These esti are based on historical consumption of the customers.

For the period éndi ecember 31,2019 and 2018, Income from Waterworks System was
classified siness Income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. '

and Penalties not related to taxes

The\Digtrict recognizes revenue from fees and fines, except those related to taxes, when

and the asset recognition criteria are met. Deferred income is recognized instead of

venue If there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to repay
@lhe amount,

The District charges fines and penalties to customers when there is a delay in the payment
of water bill. A penalty of 10% of the water bill is automatically charged by the Billing and
Collection System the day following the due date.

For the period ending December 31, 2019 and 2018, Fines and Penalties was classified
under Business Income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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2.3.16 Other Business Income -

Other customer related fees such as connection, reconnection and disconnection fees are
recognized when these services have been rendered.

2.3.17 Interest Income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues, taking into account the effecti&ld of the
assets.

2.3.18 Cost of Services and Operating Expenses 2\

Cost of services and operating expenses are recognized assthey incurred. Cost and
expenses are recognized in the profit or loss when a decEse iMfuture economic benefit

related to a decrease of an asset or an increase of a liabili 1sen other than distributions
to equity participants that can be measured reliably. Co expenses are recognized in
the profit or loss on the basis of systematic c@ onal allocation procedures when
economic benefits are expected to arise over several'aceounting periods and the association
with income can only be broadly or i ctly determined; or immediately when
expenditure produces no future econom: 1S or when, and to the extent that, future

economic benefits do not qualify, ceafe alify, for recognition in the statement of

financial position as an asset. &

For the period ending Decem , 2019 and 2018, cost of services and operating
expenses includes personnel es, maintenance and other operating expenses, financial
expenses and non-cash ex

2.3.19 Income T

Current tax

Current Z and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amo cted to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
ll'ckused to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively

enagted’as of the reporting date.

%Eeferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, for all temporary differences, with
certain exceptions, at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

A deferred tax asset shall be recognized for all deductible temporary differences and
operating loss carry forward when it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. (PAS12.24)
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Pursuant to Presidential Decree 198, under section 14 - Depagtment of Justice ruling under
case no. 0SJ-2005-03 states that the Water Districts are exempted from Income tax and
only liable to two percent (2%) Franchise Tax on its gross receipts. Recognition of deferred
tax is not applicable as stated above.

2.3.20 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the District has: (a) a present o %(legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event; (b) it is probable (i.e. more I @\ not) that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required & he obligation,;
and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obl on, If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are determinedéby discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current mﬁ;et assessment of the time value

of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to fability. Where discounting is
imi€ is recognized as an interest

ursed, the reimbursement is not
imbursement is virtually certain.
adjusted to reflect the current best

used, the increase in the provision due to the passag
expense. When the District expects a provision tg/be réi
recognized as a separate asset but only when the

Provisions are reviewed at each reportin, e and
estimate.

Contingencies &@

Contingent liabilities are not ized in the financial statements. These are disclosed
unless the possibility of tflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are o gnized in the financial statements but disclosed when an

inflow of economic ben is probable.

The employed§ of the District are members of the Government Service Insurance System
(GSIS), provides life and retirement insurance coverage. Employee entitlements to
am& ve are recognized as a liability when they are accrued to the employees.

istrict recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits, like

Wries, wages, bonuses, allowance, etc., as expense unless capitalized, and as a liability
@ after deducting the amount paid.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the District’s financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires
Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported and disclosure in the financial statements and the related notes. Judgments,
estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
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and other factors, including expectations of future events that are bglieved to be reasonable
under circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and such, will be

adjusted accordingly.

The District believes the following represent a summary of these significant judgments,
estimates and assumptions, and the related impact and associated risks in the financial

statements.
3.1  Judgments &
In the process of applying the District’s accounting policies, Management Cﬁ!

following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which @nost

significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Determination of impairment of non-financial asset

The District assesses the impairment of non-financial assets (P \ current assets, and
other noncurrent assets) whenever events or changes in cir ces indicate that the

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors thfat the District considers
important which could trigger an impairment review i e following:

» Significant underperformance relative t(& ed historical or projected future
of

operating results;

 Significant changes in the manner of us the acquired assets or the strategy for the
District’s overall business; and ? if

» Significant negative industry or ec ictrends.

In 2019 and 2018, the Districitwhas not identified any impairment indicator, thus, no
impairment was recognized. 6

3.2 Estimates and

Key assumption
reporting date th&

amounts of a

g the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty at the
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

liabilities are discussed on the next page.

Deterpripalion of impairment of receivables

The District reviews its receivables at each reporting date to assess whether provision for
doubtful accounts should be recorded in profit or loss. The District maintains an allowance
for impairment - accounts receivable based on the results of the individual and collective
impairment assessments under PAS 39. Allowance for impairment - accounts receivable is
maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for potentially uncollectible
receivables. The level of allowance is based on past collection experience and other factors
that may affect collectability. These factors include, but not limited to, age and status of
receivables, the concessionaire’s payment behavior and known market factors. An
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evaluation of receivables, designed to identify potential charges to the allowance is
performed on a continuous basis throughout the year.

The District computes the Allowance for Impairment-Accounts Receivable based on the
aging of receivables.

Determination of estimated useful lives of PPE

The useful life of each of the District’s item of PPE is estimated based on the period

collective assessment of similar business, internal technical evaluation and ex e with
similar assets. The estimated useful life of each asset is reviewed periodical pdated

commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the dsget. It/s possible
however, that future financial performance could be materially affi hanges in the
amounts and timing of recorded expenses brought about by c in the factors

mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated useful life ny item of PPE would
increase the recorded depreciation expense and decrease ing value of PPE.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents &

This account pertains to cash collecting off e% petty cash and cash in bank readily
available in the payment of current obligati f the District and not subject to any
restriction, contractual or otherwise. This ists of the following balance.

7

‘ ﬁ 2019 2018
Cash — Collecting Officers P 2,544,117.72 P 730,939.32
Petty Cash Y‘ 50,000.00 19,000.00
Cash in Bank — Local C Current Account 9,086,438.93 1,764,107.93
Cash in Bank — Local ency, Savings Account 5,781,765.55 5,953,130.28
Total Cash and Cash\NEquivalents P17,462,322.20 P8,467,177.53
The balance o Bank — Local Currency, Current Account includes the cost of two

unreleased”GhecKs totaling P37,806.56 which were not reverted as of year-end. These
checks w¢ @ eived by the concerned payees on January 2, 2020.

S. Receivables, Net

This includes all amounts due on open accounts arising from services rendered to the
customers for water sales and incidental services.

2019 2018
Accounts Receivable (AR) P12,549,624.17 P11,501,641.65
Allowance for Impairment — AR (1,254,962.42) (1,150,164.17)

Notes Receivable 1,514,885.55 1,593,137.41



J—

Due from LGUs 6,176,019.32 6,142,590.57
Receivables — Disallowances/Charges 264.74 15,328.10
Other Receivables 64,123.73 0.00
Receivables, Net $19,049,955.09 #18,102,533.56
Below is the aging of AR: &
Age of AR 2019 2018
1 — 60 days P 7,197,94422 P 6,473,072.61

61 — 120 days 570,726.96 571,269.6 \
121 days — 1 year 675,182.40 777,06 Q
over 1 year 4,105,770.59 3,680 g

Total AR P12,549,624.17 P11,5 %

6. Inventories

This account pertains to unissued materials and supplies, whi@kept in stock and held

for future use.
Py P
2 2018

Office Supplies Inventory 58 24274 P 303,631.76
Accountable Forms, Plates and Stickers Inventory 013 800.00 1,187,050.00
Chemical and Filtering Supplies Inventory 474 447.00 320,280.00
Construction Materials Inventory 7,185,404.11 5,465,164.67
Total Inventories P 8,931,893.85 P 7,276,126.43

7 & Other Assets

ThlS represents the un11 ash advances granted to officials and employees of the

deposits to Depa; blic Works and Highways (DPWH)
2019 2018

ating Expenses P 000 P 20,661.00
Advances t cial Disbursing Officer 0.00 193,100.00
Advances to Officers and Employees 0.00 222,124.67
Other Deposits 2,907,339.70 3,058,802.98
Other Assets 3,804,643.76 0.00
Total Other Assets P6,711,983.46 P3,494,688.65

8. Investments in Time Deposits — Local Currency

This account is used to recognize authorized placements of cash in local currency with
Authorized Government Depository Banks for a period of 91 days or more
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2019 2048

Investments in Time Deposits — Local  Currency P 716,259.29 P 712,096.76
Total Investments in Time Deposits — Local
Currency P 716,259.29 P 712,096.76
9, Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Net &

This includes all properties of relatively permanent character that are u 1 rmal
operations of the District. The breakdown of this account is as follows: Q

CY 2019
PPE Account Balanceat  Additions/  Disposals/  Accyfulated ¥ o0 o
January 1 Acquisitions  Reclassification tign
Land P 17,487,546.76 P 0.00 P 0.0 70,00 P 17,487,546.76
Other Land
Improvements 1,654,130.00 0.00 0. 000  1,654,130.00
Water Supply Systems ~ 431,886,560.80 17,385,235.17 (43,5 .04) V161,687,561.00 244,078,854.93
Buildings 74,574,003.04 35.497,777.39 0 29,400,227.60 80,671,552.83
Machinery and
Equipment 54,992,716.70  2,923,838.0 19,100.00)  38,078,352.74 19,819,101.96
Motor Vehicles 26,612,691.90 379,00 ,000.00) 12,361,857.99 13,728,83991
Furniture and Fixtures 5.461.525.76 273,099.5 (19,500.00) 4,099,233.07 1.615.892.19
Other PPE 156,122.00 3 0 0.00 141,683.85 47.438.15
Construction in a
Progress 5,179572.31 4,675.27  (9,996,969.11) 0.00 2.877,278.47
Total P618,004,869. ,631.33 (P54,441,949.15) P245,768,916.25P381,980,635.20
CY 2018
Balanee at Additions/ Disposals/ Accumulated
Aot Acquisitions  Reclassification = Depreciation BB, Nt
Land 19487,546.76 P 000 P 0.00 P 0.00 P 17,487,546.76
Other Land
Improvements 1,654,130.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,654,130.00
Water Supply S 416,352,167.48 15,534,393.32 0.00 183,238,677.69 248,647,883.11
Buildings g 73,890,671.98 683,331.06 0.00 16,937,46024  57,636,542.80
Machinery
Equip 52,710,246.90  3,653,159.80  (1,370,690.00)  30,452,591.26  24,540,125.44
Motor 26,409,539.90 203,152.00 0.00 11,585,586.74  15,027,105.16
d Fixtures 5,357,209.76 104,316.00 0.00 3,663,334.41 1,798,191.35
156,122.00 0.00 0.00 136,978.65 19,143.35
Ction in v
Progress 5,382,202.00 11,907,991.97 (12,110,621.66) 0.00 5,179,572.31
Total $599,399,836.78 P32,086,344.15 (P13,481,311.66) P246,014,628.99 P371,990,240.28
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The Land account as of CY 2019 under the possession of the District pertalned to the

following:
Acquisition Cost
Through Through
Land Qty. [Lot Area Purchase Donation Total
With Transfer Certificate
of Title (TCT) 14 6,402 | P12,635,450.00 | P2,245748.76 |P14,881,198%76
Without TCT 2 835.82 2,606,348.00 0.00 | 2,606
Total Land 16 | 7,237.82 | P15,241,798.00 | P2,245,748.76 |P17,487.546.76
The following information pertain to the two parcels of land which ha yet:
1. Barangay San Jose av
a) The lot located in Barangay San Jose, Baliuag, \ as purchased thru
installment basis from Mr. Wilfredo L. Santiago;
b) A Deed of Conditional Sale was executed by an. een the District and Mr.
Santiago on October 11, 2012;
¢) Among the terms and conditions stated it eed of Conditional Sale was that a
Deed of Absolute Sale in favor of the Bistrict,Will be executed only when the total
amount of 2,262,000.00 had alread§ b lly paid; and
2. Barangay Tibag

The Deed of Sale for Bara Tibag was misplaced and only a subdivision plan
was found. The District havelalready sought the help of the Register of Deeds.

The Management exerts effort 10 secure the covering TCTs on the above parcels of land to
protect the District’s i and in order to document the absolute ownership thereon.

Fina iabilities

Thls W ludes long-term obligations of the District and amounts payable to the

shown below.

2019 2018

Current
Accounts Payable P 3,082,362.47 P 2,322320.04
Loans Payable — Domestic

LWUA 1,225,076.00 1,128,946.00

LBP 17,655,644.76 19,655,644.80

Vehicle Loan 367,558.86 404,671.15
Total Financial Liabilities — Current 22,330,642.09 23,511,581.99
Non-Current
Loans Payable — Domestic

LWUA 1,492,848.65 2,717,924 .65
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2019 2Q18

LBP 103,515,249.45 121,170,894.01

Vehicle Loan 0.00 367,558.86
Total Financial Liabilities — Non Current 105,008,098.10 124,256,377.5
_Total Financial Liabilities P127,338,740.19 ?147,767,95&

Loans Payable represents the long-term obligations of the District, the procee@vhich
were used to finance various infrastructures and permanent improvements,in 0 meet
the demands of the growing clientele. Repayments are made monthly bésed.on the agreed
terms and schedule provided in the loan agreement. &

11. Inter-Agency Payables \@

This represents contributions due, collections received, a@s withheld for remittance to

the following government agencies.
2
7 & 2019 2018
Current
Due to BIR P1,742,693.09 P1,538,806.98

Due to GSIS 1,135,654.07 1,010,003.94

Due to Pag-IBIG ?‘ 169,032.43 115,338.65

Dug to Philhealth 86,185.63 75,148.26

Due to Others 0.00 0.00
Total Inter — Agency Payables — rent 3,133,565.22 2,739,297.83
Non — Current

Due to LGUs 3,420,845.00 3,420,845.00
Total Inter — Agenc les — Non — Current 3,420,845.00 3,420,845.00
Total Inter — ayables P6,554,410.22 P6,160,142.83

Due to L ins to the waterworks facilities transferred by the Municipality of

Baliwag,which*were managed, operated by and under the control of the District. These

pro@f be offset in lieu of the water consumed by the LGU as agreed upon by both
i n

12. Trust Liabilities

These are guarantee deposits from supplier and advance payment of water bill from
concessionaires.

2019 2018
Trust Liabilities P 30,435.63 P 0.00
Guaranty/Security Deposits Payable 4,520,277.38 4,644,771.13
Customers' Deposits Payable 360,500.06 195,241.24

Total Trust Liabilities $4,911,213.07 P4,840,012.37




13. Other Deferred Credits

.
This account is used to recognize other transactions not falling under any of the specific
deferred credits accounts. It include proceeds from loan availments, payment of resigned
employees’ loan amortization to LBP and sale of materials.

2019 2018
Other Deferred Credits £3,912,671.33 £960,308.55
Total Other Deferred Credits $3,912,671.33 P960,308.55

14. Leave Benefits Payable < ,
This account is used to recognize accrual of money value of the @ve credits of

government personnel. «

201 2018
Leave Benefits Payable P19 3 P15,612,050.69
Total Leave Benefits Payable 6.75 P15,612,050.69

15.  Other Payables Q
e

This account is used to recognize othér ies not falling under any of the specific

payable accounts such as Provident Employers’ Shares, Provident Fund Personal
Shares and Loans, Rice Allowanc ther Suppliers.
2019 2018
Other Payables P17,510,715.22 P19,393,619.71

Total Other PayableE : P17,510,715.22 P19,393,619.71
16. Busine Eicome ‘

These ater sales, interest income, penalty charges for late payments and violation,
new,conneefion fees and septage fees generated by the District from its concessionaires.

2019 2018
terworks System Fees P205,697,528.22 P192,228,738.11
terest Income 16,558.65 13,422.83
Fines and Penalties — Business Income 8,126,880.75 7,477,749.13
Other Business Income 13,759,005.75 12,907,283.50
Total Business Income $227,599,973.37 P212,627,193.57
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17. Total Other Gains

These are proceeds from materials purchased by concessionaires to the District.

2019 2018
Other Gains P119,115.24 $85,811.84
Total Other Gains P119,115.24 P85,811.84
18.  Other Non — Operating Income &
These are proceeds from sale of unserviceable property, reversal of impairment lgss and

miscellaneous income of the District.

o

2019
Sale of Unserviceable Property P 509,846.00 18,855.00
Reversal of Impairment Loss 0.0@ 496,376.53
Miscellaneous Income 3,398,388.0 333,446 .45

Total Other Non — Operating Income P848,677.98
19. Personnel Services
@»
2019 2018
Salaries and Wages i P44,259,018.75  -P37,793,636.10
Other Compensation ?\ 19,616,059.51 18,291,849.10
Personnel Benefits Contributions 9,823,927.66 8,439,288.27
Other Personnel Benefits 8,626,697.21 7,100,596 .48
Total Personnel Services $82,325,703.13  P71,625,369.95
20. Maintenance a er Operating Expenses (MOOE)
2019 2018
Travelling Ex $2,307,979.95 P1,559,633.44
Training peilx 1,094,548.32 1,131,964.32
Suppli rials Expenses 1,975,404.47 1,985,144.15
Electri enses 2,155,083.19 2,156,180.84
*n munication Expenses 582,031.49 566,574.13
Awwardg/Rewards Expenses 569,046.00 492.130.00
S Expenses 0.00 0.00
Generation, Transmission and Distribution
Expenses 54,367,807.95 52,134,109.69
Extraordinary and Miscellaneous Expenses 5,388,174.65 4,285,255.78
Professional Services 309,064.80 574,602.22
General Services 11,858,090.97 10,408,357.41
Repairs and Maintenance 7,135,031.63 5,400,186.75
Taxes, Insurance Premiums and Other Fees 5,324,962 .47 5,149,631.65
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2019 2018
Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses 3,521,401.71 3,101,407.01
Total MOOE $96,588,627.60 P88,945,177.39
21.  Financial Expenses

A,

Interest Expenses
Bank Charges
Other Financial Charges

2019 2
P7,435,410.55 P ,138.10
0.00 0.00

Total Financial Expenses

18,099.85 ,387.47
P7,453,510.4 8,766,525.57

22,  Non-Cash Expenses

S

4,@ 2018

Depreciation
Infrastructure Assets 13,297,951.64 P19,702,980.07
Buildings and Other Structures ,267,272.56 3,185,085.42
Machinery and Equipment 4,134418.68 4,646,356.25
Transportation Equipment 1,587,171.25 1,707,289.55
Furniture, Fixtures and Books & 453,448.65 436,096.45
Other Property, Plant and Equip: 4,705.20 2,230.20
Impairment Loss — Loans and Receival 104,798.25 - 0.00 -
Other Discounts 127,359.58 118,395.65
Total Non-Cash Expenses * $23,977,125.81 $29,798,433.59

©

X
N
QX
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PART II - AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Doubtful accuracy, existence and completeness of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

1. The accuracy, existence and completeness of Property, Plant and Equipment

(PPE) account with carrying amount of P381,980,635.20 were doubtful due to t@

inclusion of (a) intangible assets with carrying amount of P974,650.92 which we

previously recognized as Information and Communication Technology E@
account; and (b) semi expendable items costing below PI5,000.00, contr e
provisions of Annex A of COA Circular 2015-010. Likewise, Report on & ical
Count of PPE (RPCPPE) was not prepared in accordance with the=proVisions of
Sections 490 and 55.a.1a of the GAAM Volume I and 111, respe% thus, no
reconciliation was made between the PPE Lapsing Schedule an PPE from

Finance and General Services Division.

(a) Intangible assets erroneously recognized as Inforgfidion and Communication
Technology Equipment

1.1 The PPE accounts with a carrying amount of#3 ,635.20 as of December 31,
2019 represents majority or 87.84 per cent of the tdtalassets of the District.

1.2 Review of the accounts based on t sing schedule disclosed that various
payments made relative to the accounti s of the District with carrying amount of
P974,650.92 were recognized as In ation and Communication Technology

Equipment instead of Computer io@a. The details are shown below:

: Acquisition Accumulated Carrying
Txtieulars Cost Depreciation amount
30% down payment for ding of
windows-based of Billin ion system $75,000.00 £67,500.00 P7,500.00
(palm data)
Professional fee for upgrading of Bnllmg and 22.000.00 19,800.00 2.200.00
tizen Discounting) ’
contract for Website
eb Domain Registration 60,000.00 54,000.00 6,000.00
£ picic puent of BWD Geographic | ; g¢5 (39 1,772,673.31 196,963.70
Information system (phase 1)
Complete development of BWD Geographic |, ges 147 09 2,668,90232 | 296,544.70
Information System (phase 2) :
Full payment for the services rendered for the
; ; ; 0. 2,450.00
BWD website and web hosting development A0 22050:80
1 lot Development of Application Program
: ; .00 8,200.00
Interface (API) for online payment 40,000.00 ALADA ;
40% down payment for the S5-week project 50.00 24
: 150.00
development of the system of BWD SRR DR ]
1 lot Creative Clpud Alll Apps (Adobe) Software 53.592.00 4,019.40 49,572.60
for Photo and Video editing ’
Software cost of Billing and Collection and 70,550.00 63,495.00 7,055.00
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Particulars Acquisition Accuml'lla.ted Carrying
Cost Depreciation amount
Accounting System
Installation of Accounting Program 15,000.00 13,500.00 1,500.00
Labor and materials for the upgrading of 2 units 45,165.00 40,648.50 451650
computer 4
Networking of Billing and Collection Program 12,500.00 11,250.00 1,250.00
Computerization of Payroll and Inventory 40,000.00 36,000.00 ,000.00
Installation of US-Robotics, Internet Plan,
Cleaning of Computer 5,800.00 5,220.00 80.00
Program Cost of Materials and Inventory of '
BWD 00884 5,000.00 4,500.00
Program cost of Materials and Inventory of
BWD 00925 15,000.00 113 5 1,500.00
Installa.tlon of Window-based Billing and 65,000.00 500% 6,500.00
Collection System
Window-Based Accounting Program of BWD 33,000.00 %9, 00.00 3,300.00
Additional features on existing Window-Based 12,000.0 10,800.00 1,200.00
and Collection System
Isnyssttaelﬁtxon of BWD's Depreciation Schedule 15,000" 13,500.00 1,500.00
Installation of Window Based Inventory System #30,000.00 27,000.00 3,000.00
0,
f’fQ/o down payment for the groundwater OO0.00 198,000.00 22.000.00
resources y.,
1 unit Windows XP 1 unit office 20 2.424.00 29,181.60 3.242.40
Professional
5 : == : ,
20% ]?P for the upgrading of Bill and 35,000.00 31,500.00 3,500.00
Collection System.
Payment of NGAS Program 126,982.00 114,283.80 12,698.20
4 T s

Full payment of Network modelli am of 279 767.25 251,790.53 27.976.72
BWD water supply system. 2
Full payment window-based accounting system 28,000.00 25,200.00 2,800.00
30% down payment m installation of
Windows-based NGASWAccgunting system of 35,000.00 31,500.00 3,500.00
BWD
Rl Watergems/5000  pipes |, 455 000,00 2.242,800.00 |  249,200.00
softwares pa .
1 unit identity-based utm firewall
with lice: comp. with 3 yrs. subscription 197,511.00 177,759.90 19,751.10
inclides install and configuration

$9,050,875.28 P8,076,224.36 $974,650.92

<z

Inquiry with the OIC — Department Manager Finance revealed that the former
ployee of the District adjusted the said intangible assets to Information and

Communication Technology Equipment in CY 2012 in compliance with the previous
audit recommendation and the said account was not reclassified based on the Revised
Chart of Accounts (RCA) as prescribed under COA Circular No. 2015-010 dated
December 01, 2015. These items however were properly accounted for as Intangible
Assets under their Depreciation System. She also commented that Management will take
the necessary adjustments for these accounts.



1.4 The failure to restore the cost of Intangible Assets based an the Revised Chart of
Accounts (RCA) as prescribed under COA Circular No. 2015-010 dated December 01,
2015 understated the Computer Software by $9,050,875.28, Accumulated Amortization —
Computer Software by P8,076,224.36 and overstated the Information and
Communication Technology Equipment and its Accumulated Depreciation by the same

amount.

(@)

1.5

Semi-expendable items costing below P15,000.00 threshold misclassified as P

Further analysis of accounts based on the Lapsing Schedule also revealed

K

at 2

semi-expendable items below the P15,000.00 threshold with total carrying a
P139,021.01 were misclassified as Property, Plant and Equipment i

properties follows:

the
ese

n &
appropriate inventory account upon purchase and expense after issuance. PheiSof th

Aggotint Account Title/Particulars Acgmisigon: | A @ Carryme
Code Cost iation amount
10605010 | Machinery
1 pc. Electronic Control Power Board | P8,900.00 P66.75 |  $8,833.25
10605020 | Office Equipment
Industrial Coffee Maker 34 1,080.00 2,520.00
2 pcs. KYOWA Water Dispenser i 00 3,450.00 8,050.00
Sub-total ,100.00 4,530.00 10,570.00
10605030 | Information and Communication Techfiglo uipment
1 unit Acer LED Monitor 21.5" 6,800.00 2,346:00 " 4,454.00
1 pc. APC 625VA UPS ] m 3,450.00 1,190.25 2,259.75
1 unit EPSON LX-310 Dot Matri V - SBaEas 6.451.75
Printer i 4
10 units R18-05158 WIN
2016 OLP NL GOV DVCCAL 14,500.00 4.132.50 10,367.50
8,500.00 2,295.00 6,205.00
6,900.00 1,863.00 5,037.00
14,840.00 4.,006.80 10,833.20
13,000.00 2,730.00 10,270.00
3,450.00 724.50 2,725.50
3,450.00 569.25 2,880.75
13,000.00 1,365.00 11,635.00
1 unit 24" LED HKC Monitor 6,500.00 292.50 6,207.50
its BX625 UPS 7,980.00 359.10 7,620.90
1 unit EPSON Printer L3110 for Finance 7.850.00 1775 7.732.25
epartment
1 unit EPSON Printer L3110 for 7.850.00 117.75 7.732.25
Commercial Department ’
Sub-total 127,920.00 25,507.65 102,412.35
Total Machinery and Equipment 151,920.00 30,104.40 121,815.60
10607010 | Furniture and Fixtures
10 pcs. Visitors Chair CF-304BM 12,800.00 4,032.00 8,768.00
3 units Movable Cabinet with 3 drawer
centralized lock model: L-101 L 3915 4314
Total Furniture and Fixtures 21,635.00 4,429.59 17,205.41




Account Account Title/Particulars Acquisition Accu‘mgla}ed Carrying
Code Cost Depreciation amount
GRAND TOTAL P173,555.00 P34,533.99 | £139,021.01

1.6 Interview with the Property Officer and V-alidation of the Property
Acknowledgement Receipts showed that the above mentioned properties were already
issued to the District’s personnel and used in its operations as of year-end.

1.7 The OIC - Department Manager - Finance mentioned that the usual practice of
the District in handling semi expendable items was to capitalize the said items 4% PPE. In
compliance with the previous year’s audit recommendation, the Corpo&udget
Analyst B directly charged the said properties to Repairs and Maintéhance —~ Semi
Expendable instead of the appropriate inventory account upon purchasx expense after
1ssuance.

1.8 COA Circular No. 2015-010 dated December 01, 201&: es the adoption of
the Revised Chart of Accounts (RCA) for Government Corperatio (GCs) which consist
of Government-Owned or Controlled Corporations ((‘x Government Financial

Institutions  (GFIs), Government Instrumentalit Corporate  Powers
(GICPs)/Government Corporate Entities (GCEs) é r Subsidiaries, and Water
Districts. Item 2.2 of the Implementing Guidelines ofthe said Circular states that:

2.2 The GCs shall record theirsfinafic: transactions in accordance
with the RCA prescribed '

1.9 Annex A of the aforecited Cifcullix further provides the following accounts for use
of the GCs:

Account Title uter Software
Account Number 01020

Normal Bala Debit
Description This account is used to recognize the purchase cost or

capitalized ~development cost of computer software
?\ programs for use in government operation. Development
costs include cost of coding, testing and cost to produce
product masters.  Credit this account Sfor obsolescence,
\ transfers or other disposal.

ccount Title Accumulated Amortization-Computer Software
Account Number 10801021
% Normal Balance Credit
Description This account is credited for the allocation cost of computer

software in accordance with the prescribed policy on
amortization. Debit this account for obsolescence of the
computer software, transfers or other disposal.
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Account Title Semi-Expendable Machinery and Fquipment FExpenses

Account Number 50203210

Normal Balance Debit

Description This account is used to recognize the cost of semi-
expendable machinery and equipment used in operation.
This account shall be closed to the Revenue/Income and

Expense Summary account.
Account Title Semi-Expendable Furniture, Fixtures and Books Expenses &
Account Number 50203220 < ’
Normal Balance Debit
Description This account is used to recognize the cost o, i-

expendable furniture, fixtures and books used in gperétion.
This account shall be closed to the Revenue/Income and
Lixpense Summary account.

1.10  The recognition of semi-expendable items below the P15400 threshold as
Machinery and Equipment and Furniture and Fixtures resulted in thtatement of the
Property, Plant and Equipment, its corresponding Acc ted ‘Depreciation and
Retained Earnings Accounts by P173,555.00, P34,533.99 a 21.01, respectively.

c) Failure to prepare RPCPPE &
1.11  PPE is a group of asset that is vital to the ict’S operations because its revenue

generation greatly depends on its usage more a%rly those located in the Pumping
Stations. Likewise, inventory taking of thes erties is important in order to assess its
existence and condition.

1.12 The District already crea@ Inventory Committee to conduct physical
inventory of its PPE. However, (validation revealed that the preparation of RPCPPE as at
December 31, 2019 was sti %cess contrary to Section 490 of the Government
Accounting and Auditing (GAAM), Volume I which states that Physical stock-
taking is an indispens. cedure for checking the integrity of property custodianship.
In all cases, the p%nventow-taking which is required semi-annually or annually

should be regarded Wjth jmportance.

1.13  ThedB@signated Property Officer stated that the huge number of properties and the
difficulty 1 @ ifying the cost of items located within the office buildings delayed the
preparation and submission of RPCPPE.

1.14  Section 55.a.1a of GAAM Volume III provides for periodic reconciliation of
accounts which involves verifying the accuracy of one set of records against an
independent set of documents.

1.15 Owing to the non-completion of the RPCPPE, no reconciliation was made
between the PPE records of the Finance and General Services Division.
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1.16 The above noted deficiencies raised doubt on the exidtence, accuracy and
completeness of the balances of the PPE accounts as of December 3 1, 2019.

1.17 We recommended and the General Manager agreed to instruct the
Corporate Budget Analyst B through the OIC-Department Manager — Finance to
prepare the necessary adjusting entries guided by COA Circular No. 2015-010 dated
December 01, 2015 to reclassify to the proper accounts the intangible assets wit
total acquisition cost of P9,050,875.28 and semi expendable items amountin
P173,555.00 that were included in the PPE accounts.

1.18 We also recommended and the General Manager agreed to (a) @he

designated Property Officer to prepare and submit the Report onthé@Physical
Count of PPE in compliance with Section 490 of the GAAM, Volu and (b) (i)

direct the Corporate Budget Analyst B and designated Property Officer to reconcile
the PPE balances per accounting records and the Report on t ysical Count of
PPE; and (ii) investigate the discrepancies noted, if any, e the necessary
adjustments and reclassification to the proper accounts.

1.19  As agreed during the conduct of exit conference, ~@ - Department Manager —
Finance prepared the necessary adjusting entries to/rec assify to proper accounts the

semi-expendable items and intangible asstes per al Entry Voucher Nos. 2002-151
and 2002-152 both dated February 17, 2020, re ively.

Unrecorded and unpaid audit fees E
2, The District did not recognize as payable the unpaid audit fees for CY 2018 of

P217,554.74 Commission on Audifs- Region III, thereby understating the Accounts

Payable and overstating t ined Earnings contrary to paragraphs 27 and 28 of
the Philippine Accounting ards (PAS) 1 and Chapter 4 of the International
Financial Reporting rds (IFRS) Framework for Expenses.

2.1  The balanc counts Payable appearing in the financial statements of the

District as of w r 31, 2019 amounted to £3,082,362.47 which included unpaid
audit fees g to P422,238.24 payable to the Commission on Audit (COA),

RegionalOf o. I, City of San Fernando, Pampanga.
22 ds of the Administrative, Training and Finance Services (ATFS) of the
COA Regional Office No. III showed that the Baliwag Water District had an outstanding

balance of P639,792.98 as of December 31, 2019 which pertained to the unpaid audit fees
from audit of transactions for CYs 2015-2018.

2.3 Further review of the Subsidiary Ledger (SL) provided by the District revealed
that the audit fee for the audit of accounts and transactions for CY 2018 was not yet
recorded in the books of accounts by the Corporate Budget Analyst B. The details of the
unrecorded and unsettled audit fees are shown on the next page:
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Date Bill No. Account Covered Amount

05/04/2016 2015-05-011 2015 P156,594 42
09/11/2017 2017-09-017 - 2016 63,441.60
07/16/2018 2018-07-005 2017
07/16/2019 2019-07-005 2018

Total per record of ATFS

Less: AP recorded per SL of Baliwag Water District
Unrecorded Audit Fee as of December 31, 2019

2.4 Paragraphs 27 and 28 of the Philippine Accounting St
Chapter 4 of the International Financial Reporting Standard S) Framework for
Expenses states the following: \

27.  An entity shall prepare its financial sta, except cash flow

information, using accrual basis of accounti

28. When the accrual basis of accountifig js Zd, an entity recognizes items
Qxfrv

of assets, liabilities, equity, income ses (the elements of financial

statements) when they satisfy th ns and recognition criteria for
those elements in the I ramewo?
Chapter 4 of the IFRS Fra Expenses are recognized when a decrease

in future economic bene afed to a decrease in an asset or an increase of
a liability has aris that can be measured reliably. This means, in effect,
that recognition oflex, es occurs simultaneously with the recognition of an

increase in ll%s a decrease in assets (for example, the accrual of

or the depreciation of equipment).

25  Inqui OIC - Department Manager Finance disclosed that the Corporate
Budget Anal as preoccupied with the preparation of the Annual Budget for CY
2020 in Oggober 2019 that she overlooked the preparation of journal entries pertaining to

the b OA for CY 2018 audit. She also stated that the corresponding journal
% already taken up per JEV No. 2001-314 dated January 30, 2020.

Since the unpaid audit fees represents expenses incurred in prior year’s audit, the
same should be recorded in the books as an increase in liability and to be settled
immediately. Failure to record the said obligation resulted in understatement of Accounts
Payable and overstatement of Retained Earnings.

2.7 We recommended and the General Manager agreed to instruct the OIC —
Department Manager, Finance to (a) require the Corporate Budget Analyst B to
record the amount due to COA Region III amounting to P217,554.74 based on the
billings provided by the ATFS and cause the eventual settlement thereof; and (b)
monitor closely the compliance of the District regarding the recognition of audit fees
and prompt settlement to prevent the occurrence of similar conditions in the future.



2.8  As agreed during the conduct of exit conference, the QIC - Department
Manager — Finance prepared the necessary adjusting entry to take up in the books
of accounts the unpaid audit fees pertaining to CY 2018 audit per Journal Entry
Voucher No. 2002-149 dated F ebruary 17, 2020.

Remote Collectability of inactive accounts and receivables from the Municipality

3. The remote collectability
accumulated to an alarming level because of the absence of an effective collectio
policy, while the settlement of active receivables JSrom the Municipality of Baliw,
amounting to P6,142,590.57 is still under negotiations, thus, depriving the Distrigt o
the opportunity cost on the Junds tied up to these receivables contrary to Section 64
the Government Accounting and Auditing Manual, Volume I.

a. Inactive accounts - P4,702,616.80

3.1 As of December 31, 2019,
District amounted to P12,549,624.17.

Q}

the balance of Accounts ReceiVa e (AR) of the

wed the following

3.2 The Aging Schedule prepared by the Commercial Di
balances of active and inactive accounts for CY 2019:
CY 2019
Status of AR Active Inactive
Non Past Due Accounts:
1-30 days P5,915,340.60 $7,997.60
31-60 days 1,117,165.57 157,440.45
Sub-total 7,032,506.17 165,438.05
Past Due Accounts:
61-120 days -~ 380,258.41 190,468.55
121-365 days ‘@ 180,279.60 | 494,902.80
more than 1 year 253,963.19 3,851,807.40
Sub-total 814,501.20 4,537,178.75
Total 7,847,007.37 4,702,616.80
Balance of AR as the year 12,549.624.17
% of Inactive,to balance of AR 37.47%

3.3
December

prepared @ District was unable to properly
those over one year. Inquiry with Management
have been long outstanding for ten years or mo
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The t of $4,702,616.80 or 37.47 per cent of the total balance of AR as of
313 2019 represents inactive accounts, Although an Aging Schedule was

identify the age of past due accounts for

disclosed that these included accounts that
re.




3.4  Verification disclosed that the Board, as policy governing body, had issued
policies and procedures in the handling and recovery of delinquent accounts by
disconnecting the water services of inactive concessionaires account.

enjoin permanently disconnected accounts to pay their unsettled obligations. Under the

3.5  In CY 2018 audit, the Management launched a program called “Baliksaya” to
above mentioned program, the Management sent two sets of letter notices, as follows: Q&

1* Letter One year after the account was permanently disconnected
| concessionaires were informed of their unsettled obligatio
2% Letter The concessionaires were given three months from the’dat€ o
the 1% letter to settle their unpaid account. Otherwige, the 2nd
letter served as the final warning to settle thei tanding

obligations. \
3.6 Moreover, the District issues demand letter three mon@r the 2™ letter or

final warning stating that Management will proceed to anga¥an if settlement of
obligation has not been made and subsequently file a ¢ to those accounts with
huge outstanding balance and without any settleme e‘goncessionaires who do not
have the capacity but are willing to settle their acfounts are allowed to pay in
installment basis with 30 per cent down payment the balance in installment up to one
year.

3.7  As of January 2019, 14 out of ginquent concessionaires with the total
amount due of P97,471.17, respond paying their arrearages and requested for
reconnection. The Management found out that 63 concessionaires with inactive
accounts and total outstanding g@bligation of P99,604.60 had existing active accounts

which will be coordinated Wl% onsible concessionaires for collection.
19

3.8  However, in J the Management decided to temporarily stop the

“Baliksaya” progr: the Treasury Division prioritized the request for write-off

of 384 accounts % P582,698.55 which was already endorsed to the General
val

Manager for appv the BOD on December 16, 2019.

b. Uneolletied active accounts of the Municipality of Baliwag — P6,142,590.57

3.9  TheMormer Department Manager of Commercial mentioned that the Municipality
had transferred to the District the waterworks facilities costing P3,420,845.00 on April
17, 1989, which were managed, operated by and under the control of the latter as required
under Section 6 of PD No. 198 which states that to form a district, the legislative body of
any city, municipality or province shall enact a resolution containing the following:

XXX
(c) a statement completely transferring any and all waterworks and/or
sewerage facilities managed, operated by or under the control of
such city, municipality or province to such district upon the filing

SO



of resolution forming the district. (As amended by'Sec. 2, PD 768;
Sec. 1, PD 1479)

3.10 As per verbal agreement, the properties transferred to the District by the
Municipality which were taken up under the Due to LGUs account will be offset against
the water consumed by the Municipality.

3.11 The District had already negotiated with the Municipality based on the letter dates ,
April 04, 2018 of the latter requesting to discuss the arrangement on the LGU’s “in Hi

shares” to the District. Inquiry with the former Senior Accounting Processor B di
that the Municipality was pursuing to offset the value of the properties transfe
their unpaid water bill.

€

3.12  However, the letter of the General Manager dated February 0 equested
the Municipality to at least update the water bill payments startingdan 019, so as
not to increase the unsettled balance that could affect the District’ ‘@@ ion efficiency.

3.13 On March 18, 2019, The Municipal Administrator @ a letter to the General
Manager requesting the District for the condonation of tfe péhalties charged against the

Municipality including future penalties to be incurred“beCause of stringent accounting
rules in the processing of disbursement vouchers.

3.14 The OIC - Department Manager i%& replied through the -Municipal
Accountant waiving the penalties of the aine\LGU accounts with the District as per

approved Board Resolution No. 22 Seri dated March 19, 2019.

3.15 Verification revealed that starting, April 2019, the current accounts/billings of the

Municipality were regularly collect the District, however, the bulk of the account in

the total amount of 6,142,590} 99.46 per cent remained uncollected for more than
%c%

one year. The aging of thi t is as follows:

A@ue from LGUs Amount
1-30 days P 33,389.56
31%0:days 39.19
¢'than 1 year 6,142,590.57
$6,176,019.32

3.16 The Office of the Sangguniang Bayan furnished the District a copy of the
approved Kapasiyahan Blg. 66 series of 2019 dated October 28, 2019 authorizing the
Municipal Mayor to sign a memorandum of agreement relative to the “in lieu shares™ of
three per cent of gross receipts yearly until such time that the District has paid the
assessed value of the waterworks facilities transferred to the District.

3.17 OnJanuary 21, 2020, the Audit Team sent a confirmation letter to the Audit Team
Leader of the Municipality requesting for the confirmation of the balance of the
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receivable from the Municipality. As of audit date, no reply was received from the
Municipality.

3.18 Section 64 of the Government Accounting and Auditing Manual states that
Quarterly, each agency accounting unit shall prepare a’ statement scheduling overdue
accounts receivable. The agency head, or his authorized representative, shall review and
sign this statement as an indication that he has examined the list of overdue accounts and
has instituted, or will institute action for their collection. (Underscoring ours)

3.19 Because of the absence of effective collection policy and on-going ne@

with the Municipality for possible offsetting of the unpaid water bill against tfansfegred
waterworks facilities, the inactive AR and active accounts from the Munic% ged
more than one year have accumulated to an alarming level of P4 16,80 and
$6,142,590.57, respectively, as of December 31, 2019, thus, depriving/thédistfict of the
opportunity cost on the funds tied up to these receivables. &

3.20 We recommended and the General Manager agre instruct the Division
Manager — Customer Accounts and the OIC — Departm nager Finance to (a)
send demand letters to verify the existence of the asionaires with inactive
accounts in their indicated addresses; (b) stren efforts to collect the inactive
accounts receivables including those with exis%geounts and take appropriate
legal action, if necessary; (c) fast track the p ion of the request for write-off of
dormant accounts from the Commissio t , after all measures to collect
proved futile pursuant to COA Clrcul& 16-005 dated December 19, 2016;

thé incumbent Municipal Mayor the legal

and (d) coordinate/discuss constantly
processes on the possible offsetting\of\the value of the properties transferred as in
lieu share to the District for the id"water bill; otherwise, exert utmost efforts to

collect the unpaid actlve accou taling $6,142,590.57.

Failure to develop polY\ are plans and display information on disasters
0

t develop policies, prepare plans and display information on
o0 Section 4, Rule 1 of the General Provisions of the Implementing
ations of RA No. 10121. As a result, the awareness/consciousness and

understa disasters by its personnel and concessionaires were not promoted.

on building located in Col. Toma Cruz St., Barangay Poblacion, Baliwag, Bulacan

area of approximately 2,492.00 square meters. The said buildings are being used
by different departments including the commercial department wherein most of the
concessionaires paid their monthly bills.

4@ e District is the owner of a Three-Storey Main building and a Four Storey
with¥an



42  The Audit Team observed that only the following information was posted on
respective areas of the building: ?

Citizens Charter;

Quality Policy and Certificate of Conformance; -

Organizational Chart and Water Distribution Layout Index Map; and

Other information or signage on: a) No Noon Break; b) Bawal Manigarilyo;

c) Bawal ang Fixer; and d) Red Tape, Bayan-Talo &

Ll S

43  Interview with the Officer in Charge — Building and Grounds Div@jgarding
the compliance of the District with the requirements of the Nationx' ter Risk
Reduction and Management Plan (NDRRMP) for 2011 to 20 isclosed that he
attended a seminar on “Disaster Preparedness and First Aid #raifing"and Seminar”
conducted by Baliwag Municipal Disaster Risk Reduction a\@n ement Office on
February 2, 2018. However, the preparation of the policies@n: lants including complete
display of information on disaster are still in process.

44  Republic Act No. 10121, otherwise kno@ “An act strengthening the
Philippine Disaster Risk Reduction and Mana nt em” was enacted by the Senate
and House of Representative of the Philip i@.’uly 27, 2009. It provided for the
national disaster risk reduction and mangge frame work and institutionalized the

national disaster risk reduction and mén t plan, appropriation of funds and for
other purposes. .

Regulations of this Act p s for the development of policies, plans and the
implementation of actions easures pertaining to all aspects of disaster risk reduction

4.5 Section 4, Rule 1 of Se?r}ral Provisions of the Implementing Rules and
and management, @ng good governance, risk assessment and early warning,

knowledge building ardd) awareness raising, reducing underlying risk factors, and

preparedness fo ie response and early recovery. These apply to all levels of
government, divil\gbciéties, private sections and all the DRM stakeholders.

ational Disaster Coordinating Council (NDCC) identified as one of the
the National Disaster Risk Reduction and Management Plan (NDRRMP)
8 is to establish and strengthen capacities of communities to anticipate, cope
over from the negative impacts of emergency occurrences and disasters. This can
achieved by increasing the level of awareness of the community to the threats and

@npacts of all hazards, risks and vulnerabilities.

47  Due to delayed compliance with the requirements of NDRRMP for 2011 to 2028
such as preparation of the policies, plan and complete display of information on disasters
relative to various calamities such as earthquake, typhoon, flashflood, fire and the like,
the District’s customers/concessionaires and its officials and employees’ consciousness
and understanding of disasters were not promoted, thus, they may not be ready in the
event of disasters.
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4.8  We recommended and the General Manager thru the OIC-Buildings and
Grounds Division agreed to (a) prepare policies, plans and display complete
information materials like NDCC alerto tips charts at customer’s waiting areas and
office bulletin boards; and (b) conduct briefings/alert drills on calamities to assess
the preparedness of its personnel in the event of calamities.

Non-compliance with BIR Regulations

2 Analysis of the Due to BIR account revealed over or under remittance @
monthly taxes withheld ranging from a negative amount of P678,026.

P399,882.13 contrary to Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 1 — Prese @
Financial Statements and Conceptual Framework Jor Financial Reporting&

5.1 Audit of the Due to BIR account relative to the amount of tax€s withheld and

remitted for CY 2019 revealed that the District substantially comphi ith Revenue
uires that all

d by them on or

government agencies as tax withholding agents remit all taxes

Memorandum Circular No. 23-2007 dated March 20, 2007 @
before the 10th day of the succeeding month.

5.2 The details of the withholding of applicable

remittance thereof are shown below.

S

r each month from the

employees’ compensation, franchise taxes and paK ofsgoods and services and the

Year/ Beginning Amount 1% Ending Under/(Over)

Month Balance Withheld emitted Balance Remittance
December 2019 £998,114. 25,701.15 | P1,538,806.98
January 1,538,806.98 1,142 973 88 1,584,861.83 1,096,919.03 | (586,747.01)
February 1,096,919.03 W 743,091.75 1,271,398.91 399,882.13
March 1,271,398 91 834778 619,933.93 1,758,299.76 297,637.70
April 1,758,299.76 8,728.37 1,771,112.56 975,915.57 | (664,277.78)
May 975,915. 1,084,929.50 662,578.66 1,398,266 41 326,149.71
June 1,398, 999,942 45 733,052.68 1,665,156.18 351,876.82
July 1,665,1569 1,095,882.88 1,677,968.98 1,083,070.08 | (678,026.53)
August 1,083,070708 1,182,687.17 747,067.32 1,518,689.93 348,815.56
September %689.93 984,899.23 861,205.40 1,642,383.76 321,481.77
October 13642.383.76 1,048,203.27 1,655,196.56 1,035,390.47 | (670,297.33
November ,035,390.47 1,264,105.06 716,024.05 1,583,471.48 332,179.22
December 1,583,471.48 1,098,134.76 938,913.15 1,742,693.09 325,191.91
Total P12,914,892.98 | P12,711,006.87

* The Over/under Remittance is the previous amount withheld less the current amount remitted.

53  Due to lack of review, there were over or under remittances ranging from
negative amount of P678,026.53 to $399,882.13.




5.4  PAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements states that the objective of financial
statements is to provide information about the financial position? financial performance
and cash flows of an entity that is useful to a wide range of users in making economic
decisions. Moreover, under the Conceptual Framework for financial reporting for
information to be useful it must both be relevant and provide a faithful representation of
what it purports to represent. A_faithful representation is, to the maximum extent &

possible, complete, neutral and free from error. (underscoring ours)

5.5 The Senior Accounting Processor B mentioned that the over or under remittanc
were due to the following:

> The District inadvertently remitted the taxes withheld on @%

check/disbursement voucher
Over deduction of taxes to suppliers because of an error in @€terminihg the
taxable amount;

>
» Franchise taxes withheld were remitted after every quarter; and
» Advance remittance of taxes withheld for the year-end bon @ ployees.
5.6  We recommended and the General Manager thr OIC - Department

Manager Finance agreed to (a) continue to be complia ith the BIR regulations

on the withholding and remittance of the appropriate’taxes within the prescribed
period; and (b) require the Senior Accounting F&ess B to be more cautious in
recording the taxes withheld and remitted to id errors that may result in over or

under remittances of taxes withheld. $

Non-compliance with GSIS Requtren

monthly contributions rangi a negative amount of P39,861.67 to P30,725.59
contrary to Philippine Standards (PAS) 1 — Presentation of Financial
Statements and Conceptyg work for Financial Reporting.

6. Analysis of the Due t&G ccount revealed over or under remittance of
4

GSIS account showed that the District withheld employees’

6.1  Audit of tl%
share/loans andfthese Were remitted including the employer’s share to the GSIS. Based on
hereunder is the summary of the GSIS employees’ and employer’s

contributi eld as well as the corresponding remittances for CY 2019:
Particulars Amount
Beginning Balance, January 1 P 1,010,003.94
Add: Amount Withheld from employees and total employer's share for 13.504.339.21
the year
Total 14,514,343.15
Less: Remittances from January to December 13,378,689.08
Unremitted as of December 31 P 1,135,654.07
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6.2 The District deducted the mandatory contributions for CY 2019 representing
employees’ share of 9% and employer’s share of 12% of the basic monthly salaries of its
officials and employees as set forth under Section 5 of RA No. 8291, the Government
Service Insurance System (GSIS) Act of 1997 which states that the mandatory monthly
contribution of each employee and employer is 9% and 12%, respectively, of the basic

monthly compensation.

6.3  The contributions were relatively remitted pursuant to Section 6 (b) of the same
Act which states that Fach employer shall remit directly to the GSIS the employe d
employer’s contributions within the first ten (10) days of the calendar month _@in

the month to which the contributions apply, viz:

Beginning Amount Amount nder
Month/ Year Balance Withheld Remitted (Over)
(A) (B) (8] Remittance*
December 2018 $1,012,719.20 P940,814.21
CY 2019
January 1,010,003.94 1,046,551.22 1,020,052 (7,333.59)
February 1,036,502.37 1,064,747.52 ,032,906.80 | (21,791.87)
March 1,032,906.80 1,107,064.17 1,045,748.90| (29,474.55)
April 1,045,748.90 1,109,395.40 1,078,805.72 30,725.59
May 1,078,805.72 1,118,553.04 1,117,833.92 29,870.56
June 1,117,833.92 1,122,468 4 1,121,324.67 (424.61)
July 1,121,324.67 1,123,889.98 1,156,984.02 (1,421.58)
August 1,156,984.02 1,199,411.00 1,120,603.30 | (39,861.67)
September 1,120,603.30 1,138,691.30 1,148,117.28 24,338.98
October 1,148,117.28 1,154,469.37 1,150,583.24 11,735.91
November 1,150,583. 1,148,118.07 1,155,235.57 1,143,465.74 1,699.76
December 1,143,465.%4 6,141,721.17 1,149,532.84 1,135,654.07 (1,414.77)
Total 13,504,339.21 | P13,378,689.08 b« T el

* The Over/Under Rem n%s the previous amount withheld less the current amount remitted.

6.4 Based\

from a negativi

Y

— Presentation of Financial Statements states that the objective of financial

above table, it showed there were over or under remittances ranging
mount of $39,861.67 to 30,725.59.

St edlls is to provide information about the financial position, financial performance
a h flows of an entity that is useful to a wide range of users in making economic
deciSions. Moreover, under the Conceptual Framework for financial reporting for
information to be useful it must both be relevant and provide a faithful representation of
what it purports to represent. A faithful representation is, to the maximum extent
possible, complete, neutral and free from error. (underscoring ours)

6.6  According to the Senior Accounting Processor B, the negative or positive
differences in Due to GSIS account were due to the following:
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» The District still deducted monthly amortization of Education Assistance Loan
even if the loan was already paid in full by the employse.

» The District still deducted monthly amortization of loans but the loans were
already fully paid per record of the GSIS as stated by the Senior Accounting
Processor B. :

» When the date of resignation or appointment of promotion of employees falls on
weekends or holiday, the District computed the contributions based on the whole
monthly salary but the GSIS prorated based on the actual number o&ays

remaining only.

6.7  We recommended and the General Manager through the OIC - gpaent
Manager Finance agreed to (a) remit fully and continuously on e GSIS
contributions in compliance with the provisions of Sections 5 and 0. 8291;
and (b) require the Senior Accounting Processor B to be more r& in recording
the transactions to avoid errors that could result in the over nderremittances of
contributions withheld in compliance with PAS 1 and C %] Framework for
Financial Reporting. (\

Jor CY 2019 amounting to $12,100,000.0 ted 5.10 per cent of the total budget
of the District pursuant to Section 32 o< th eral Appropriation.s Act (GAA) for FY

GAD Compliance Q
7 The Gender and Development (GAD %v, Programs and Activities (PPAs)
&ns
e

2019.

7.1 The District’s GAD Fogal Pomt System prepared the GAD Plan and Budget
(GPB) for CY 2019 which was rightfully submitted on January 29, 2018 to the Local
Water Utilities Administratfon {LWUA) while the GAD Accomplishment Report for CY
2019 is yet to be submi thin this year in accordance with Section 4 of PCW
Memorandum Circula 16-06 dated October 10, 2016 which states that, 41/ LWD
GPBs and GAD ARs'%Shall be submitted to the LWUA.

7.2 The Dxa located/attributed the amount of £12,100,000.00 or 5.10 per cent of
’s tof.

the Distrigt’ nnual budget of 237,249,729.49 for CY 2019.

73 der is a table summarizing the computation for the GPB for CY 2019:

’—% Nature Amount
Personnel Services (PS) P 96,509,642.74
Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses (MOOE) 95,520,595.27
Capital Outlay (CO) 36,481,574.99
Financial Expenses (FE) 8,737,916.49
Total P237,249,729.49
Amount to be budgeted - at least 5% of the District's Budget P 11,862,486.47
Amount Budgeted for GAD — 5% of the District’s Budget P 12,100,000.00
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7.4 Section 32 of GAA for FY 2019 states that: q

The GAD Plan shall be integrated in the regular activities of the agencies,
which shall be at least five percent (5%) of their respective budgets. For
this purpose, activities currently being undertaken by agencies which
relate to GAD or those that contribute to poverty alleviation, economic
empowerment especially of marginalized women, protection, promotio
and fulfillment of women’s human rights, and practice of gend&
responsive governance are considered sufficient with said requireme@
7.5  The corresponding Accomplishment Report for CY 2019 \ that the
Programs, Projects and Activities (PPAs) implemented amounted '«910 804,480.47 or
89.29% of the total District’s GAD budget of £12,100,000000. Maccording to the
Department Manager — Finance, the balance of P1,295,519.53 form$part of the District’s
savings in CY 2019.

7.6 We recommended and the General Managé the Chairperson, GAD
Focal Point System agreed to (a) continue to set aside oy attribute at least 5% of the

total budget for GAD which shall be integrat its PPAs; and (b) implement fully
all GAD PPAs identified by the District for and onwards.

Non=revenue water within the accepm@it

v;age rate of 14.70 per cent of Non-Revenue Water

8. The District registered a
ithin' the maximum acceptable 30 per cent NRW set by

the Local Water Utilities A
No. 011-18 dated Jun

8.1 Review of

which was within the acceptable 30 per cent NRW set by the
¢ shown below.

Wingen Water Billed | Difference % of .Peso
Produced : : equivalent of
(e, m.) (in cu. m.) | (in cu. m.) | NRW/Loss NRW/Loss
A B (A)-(B)=C (C)/(A) (C/10)*174.00
681,619 604,813 76,806 11.27% 1,336,424 .40
678,970 582,149 96,821 14.26% 1,684,685.40
March 616,721 554,715 62,006 10.05% 1,078,904.40
April 697,563 624,838 72,725 10.43% 1,265,415.00
May 687,202 623,390 63,812 9.29% 1,110,328.80
June 729,124 643,204 85,920 11.78% 1,495,008.00
July 726,373 624,593 101,780 14.01% 1,770,972.00
August 747,210 630,994 116,216 15.55% 2,022,158.40
September 761,090 632,754 128,336 16.86% 2,233,046.40
October 744,577 599,499 145,078 19.48% 2,524,357.20
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Pr‘())‘:ia::: d V\fater Billed l?iﬂ‘erence %,of equixl'):lse(:l tof
Month (in cu. m.) (in cu. m.) | (in cu. m.) | NRW/Loss NRW/Loss
A B A-B)=C | (O/A) | (C/10)*174.00
| November 770,185 616,272 153,913 19.98% 2,678,086.20
December 745,997 587,314 158,683 21.27% 2,761,084.20
Total 8,586,631 7,324,535 | 1,262,096 14.70% %),470.40
8.2 In order to maintain performance levels required for various gfncerns; such as:
incentives, credit classification, re-categorization, loan applicati 0 per diem
adjustments and other performance based concerns, the LWU ON Memorandum
Circular (MC) No. 011-18 dated June 1, 2018 increasing the ptable level rate

of 20% to <30%.

8.3 Further, under LWUA Memorandum Circul %14-10 dated December 2,
2010, Water Districts (WDs) were enjoined to perio% nduct performance audit of
water meters being used by customers to ensufe thei accuracy. Depending on the
condition of operation, the water meter should be testéd for accuracy after five years of

utilization. Water meters showing errors ore than the following tolerance levels
should be calibrated or replaced as follows:

S

From Maximum Flow % gional Flow +2%
+

From Minimum Flow to sitional Flow 3%
In order to meet this fequirement, all WDs were encouraged to allocate
Junds to estqblis ir own water meter testing facility.

84  The OIC Division Manager Water Production disclosed the following
programs/strategie; @ aken by the District to lessen the NRW in CY 2019:

e Bistrict’s pumping stations used Variable Frequency Drives (VFD) to set
esire water pressure and avoid major leak in the distribution line;

0 Replaced mechanical flow meter by electro-magnetic flow meter;

¢. Conducted regular pump test to all pumping station to ensure that efficiency

@E of pumps and motors are maintained;

d. Scheduled regular air scouring to clean the mains and look for possible leaks
and illegal connection;

. Immediate response to all reported leaks; and

f. Conducted system pressure analysis using data logger to balance the water
pressure at the whole distribution area.
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8.5  Even if the average NRW was below the acceptable level of 30 per cent, the
NRW rate of 14.70 per cent for CY 2019 was even hi gher by .48 per cent as compared to
14.22 per cent for CY 2018, therefore, Management should still be concerned on how to
further minimize the NRW losses to ensure that whatever resources taken from nature are
put to good use or properly conserved and that the corresponding billings are collected
and used to improve the services and facilities of the District.

8.6  We commended the Management for maintaining an average&f 14.70
per cent NRW for CY 2019 which was below the 30 per cent maximium aceeptable
NRW set by the LWUA. Likewise, we encouraged and the Ge @nager and
OIC Division Manager — Water Production agreed to closely{rigordusly monitor
and to continuously undertake measures to further reduce it

Enforcement of Audit Suspensions, Disallowances and C@

9. Prior years’ audit disallowances issued s 2012 to 2018 transactions
totaled P26,166,736.87 with settlements made in total amount of P550,000.00;
leaving a balance of P25,61 6,736.87 a December 31, 2019. There were
disallowable disbursements amounting 4,429.38 in the audit of CY 2019
transactions.

9.1 The Statement of Audit Su@m , Disallowances and Charges as of December
31, 2019 amounted to P26,16 .87 with audit settlement in the total amount of
P550,000.00 as of CY 2019, ther leaving an unsettled balance of P25,616,736.87. The

details are as follows:

Balance as of
ND No./Date re December 31, Remarks
2019
CY 2012 Audit .
Kxauthorize d rice The original au@it disallowance totaled
a0l , P0.00 | P550,000.00 which were fully settled as
s of June 28, 2019.
4 Audit
Unauthorized and
(";(;i:& excessive 3,082,518.13
b In view of RO III Decision No. 2018-130
i Edsassive dated lAfugu;t Zl§é2018fw£li)ch .deniczd :ﬁe
- . appeal for the lifting o s issued, the
2014) dated | P rodugtlvxty 2730,160.40 DpiIs)trict filed a Petitgion for Review with
8/4/15 lEpstiyebolns the COA Commission Proper under
2015-08-003- Unauthorized rice COA CP Case No. 2018-1163 dated
BWD  (2013- | allowance and 3.682.571 50 December 10, 2018. The District is still
2014)  dated | Year End Financial L waiting for the decision of the
8/4/15 Assistance Commission Proper as of audit date.
2015-08-004- Excessive Pag-
BWD  (2013- | IBIG Fund 586,201.45
2014) dated | Employer's share
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Balance as of )
ND No./Date Nature December 31, Remarks
2019
8/4/15
2015-08-005-
BWD  (2013- | Unauthorized
2014) dated | Provident Fund 3.950,450.08
8/4/15
2015-08-006- Excessive  Extra
BWD  (2013- | ordinary and
2014)  dated | Miscellaneous SaAatiD &
8/4/15 Expenses (EME) -
Sub-Total 14,305,901.51
CY 2015 Audit
2016-05-001- ] ] 4
BWD  (2015) Kﬁz‘g:;’;fed P 890,000.00 &
dated 5/2/16
2016-05-002- .
BWD  (2015) K;’a?‘th‘mzedB 1,963,427.85 6
dated 5/2/16 s \
2016-05-003- gxfiim:'s T ith Appeal Memorandum filed on
BWD (2015) P ITIB);G Fund 213,838.0 ovember 3, 2016. The Management is
dated 5/2/16 T o still waiting for the decision of the COA
Contribution . .
: %— Regional Office No. III as of audit date.
Unauthorized
2016-05-004- Bitslovar's dhare | .
BWD (2015) | P .OYyer's share in ,020£005.70
dated 5/2/16 | Provident  Fund
Contribution
2016-05-005-
BWD  (2015) | Excessive E D~ 98,063.33
dated 5/2/16
Sub-Total 5,186,334.96
CY 2017 Audit
I Ex€essiye
2018-001- RepreSentation and
BWD rtation 277,836.00
ance
TA) With Appeal Memorandum filed on June
nauthorized 10, 2019. The Management is still

Employer's share in

waiting for the decision of the CO

A

B Provident Fund 20733p3.50 Regional Office No. III as of audit date.
Contribution
Unauthorized Rice 797,500.00
Allowance
Sub-Total 3,150,639.50
CY 2018 Audit
2019-001-
BWD (18) Excessive RATA 387,436.80 | The NDs were received on October 03,
dated 09/20/19 2019. Management will file an Appeal
2019-002- Unauthorized Memorandum to COA Regional Office
BWD (18) Employer's share in 1,777,824.10 No. III.
dated 09/20/19 | Provident Fund J
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[ Balance as of
ND No./Date Nature December 31, . Remarks
2019
Contribution
2019-003- . .
BWD (18) Z‘;z‘z:gg‘:ed Rige 767,500.00
dated 09/23/19
2019-004- Excessive
BWD (18) Travelling 41,100.00
dated 10/02/19 | Expenses { g
Sub-Total 2,973,860.90 7
TOTAL P25,616,736.87

9.2 Section 7.1 of the Rules and Regulations on Settleme 6 A
provides among others that the Head of Agency shall ensufe thaw disallowances and
charges are settled within the prescribed period, the ement of transactions

qu
suspended in audit are complied with, and appropri%tions are taken on the
deficiencies presented in the Audit Observations Memor

ounts (RRSA)

93 In the audit of CY 2019 transactions, the
disbursements amounting to 4,054,429 38
Observation Memoranda (AOM), to wit:

t Team disclosed disallowable
were discussed thoroughly in the Audit

Nature 0. Date Amount

Excessive RATA 2020%1-BWD (19) | 01/29/2020 | 8 84,952 .80
i o healthcare 20-03-BWD (19) | 01/29/2020 |  2,714,875.58
| services or benefits \
' Unauthorized Employer’s,Sh |
§ to the District’s Employees 2020-04-BWD (19) | 01/29/2020 1,124,601.00
' Provident Fund Asso€iatien, Inc.
' Unauthorized ri 2020-10-BWD (19) | 01/30/2020 130,000.00

i P4,054,429.38 |

ommended that the officials and employees determined liable cause
of the amount received covered by the Notices of Disallowance to be

ued for CY 2019 audit or file an appeal within the period of six months after
thereof pursuant to Section 1, Rule V of the 2009 Revised Rules of

Q? cedures of the Commission on Audit.
‘ -5 We also recommended that Management (a) file a Petition for Review within
the remaining period of six months provided in Section 4, Rule V of the 2009

Revised Rules of Procedures of the COA for their Appeals that were denied by COA

Regional Office No. III; and (b) comply strictly with laws, rules and regulations to
avoid disallowances in the future transactions.
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PART IIl - STATUS OF EMENTATION OF
~IOR YEAR’S UNIMPLEMEN&A IT RECOMMENDATIONS



PART HI - STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEAR’S
UNIMPLEMENTED AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Report, 16 were fully implemented and eight were partially implemented as d

below:

Of the 24 audit recommendations embodied in the CY 2018 Financial &n

d

Audit Observations and
Recommendations

Ref.

Management’s
Action

St
Im 10n/
ReaSon Partial/

Nen lementation

& The collectability of
inactive accounts ftotaling
P4,295620.74 and
receivables  from the
Municipality  of  Baliwag
amounting to P6,142,590.57
was remote thus placing
these impaired receivables to
an alarming level contrary to
Section 64 of the
Government Accounting and
Auditing Manual, Volume I,

We recommended that ghcj

General Manager ins
nce

Division Manager ‘%
and Commercialto—
(a) contiIN y

send
confirma demand letters

to the onaires;
(b) monitor the status of

trade accounts and improve
collection  strategies on
delinquent accounts which
may include appropriate
legal action, if necessary;

(c) determine the
possibility of collecting the

inactive accounts receivables

FAR
2018
Obs.
No. 1

&

The  Management
already prepared a
request for write-off

Partially Implemented

Reiterated in
Observation No. 3 of
CY 2019 FAR.
Partially Implemented
Reiterated in
Observation No. 3 of
CY 2019 FAR.
Partially Implemented
Reiterated in




. Status of

Audit Observations and Ref Management’s Implementation/
Recommendations : Action Reason for Partial/

. Non Implementation
which are more than ten on December 16, | Observation No. 3 of
years or request authority 2019 for review of | CY 2019 FAR.
from the Commission on General Manager.

Audit for the write-off of &

dormant accounts, after all

measures to collect have < ’
been futile and which can no \
longer be supported by the

required documents pursuant

to COA Circular No. 2016-

005 dated December 19,
2016; and \

(d)  make a full The @gement Partially Implemented
representation  with  the sent, a leter to the
incumbent Municipal Mayor @'ﬁipah’ty of | Reiterated in

regarding the legal processes }3 iwag (MB) dated | Observation No. 3 of
on the offsetting of the value Q Voruary I, 2019 | CY 2019 FAR.

of the properties given & requesting to at least :

totaling £3,420,845.00 as i update the water bill |
lieu share to the District ov payments  starting

the wunpaid water January 2019. For

otherwise, exert 0S receivables prior to
efforts to collegtsthe unpaid 2019, the Office of
active accov@totaling the Sangguniang
P6,142,59 Bayan furnished the
(v District a copy of

the approved

Kapasiyahan Blg. 66

\ series of 2019 dated
October 28, 2019

authorizing the

Municipal Mayor to
sign a memorandum
of agreement
relative to the in lieu
shares of three per
cent of  gross
receipts yearly until
such time that the
District paid the
assessed value of the




.

Status of

liquidation thereof ranging
from two to 93 days in
violation of COA Circular
No. 97-002 dated February
10, 1997.

We recommended that, t
General Manager —

closely monitor/ the

(a)
granting,

utiliZag and
liquidation o advances;
and
(b &uire the
Mﬂt Manager -
€ to see to it that
)i) all cash advances
made by officials and
employees be commensurate
to the actual need and that
they should be reported or
immediately liquidated as

soon as the purpose for
which it was granted has

Q.
&
A

The Department
Manager - Finance
adhered to COA’s
recommendation to
strictly monitor the
liquidation of cash

advances (CA)
within the
prescribed  period
and ensured that no
CA were granted
unless the previous
CA were liquidated.

Audit Observations and Ref Management’s Implementation/
Recommendations ¥ Action Reason for Partial/
Non Implementation
waterworks facilities
transferred to the
Dastrict. The said in
lieu shares will be
used to offset for the &
unpaid billings of
the Municipality in
prior years. \
2 The District granted | FAR
cash advances in excess of | 2018
the  actual  need by | Obs. \“
P626,358.47 or 24.76% and | No. 2
the accountable officers
incurred delays in the

Fully Implemented

Partially Implemented

Per validation, several
cash advances were
still granted in excess
of the actual need and
the Management was
advised to  fully

54




Audit Observations and
Recommendations

Ref.

Management’s
Action

Status of
Implementation/
Reason for Partial/
Non Implementation

the Procurement Head and
BAC to post all RFQs with
Approved Budget for the
Contracts of more than
P50,000.00 in the PhilGEPS’
website for a period of seven
calendar days in compliance
with the RIRR of RA No.
9184.

Likewise, we recommended
that the General Manager see
to 1t that all necessary
documents are attached to
the Disbursement Vouchers
and monitor closely the

compliance with the
requirements of the
procurement  rules and

conditions in the future.

q&te

j

})is rsement
&; %uchers.
regulations to prevent th
recurrence of similar

recommendation of
COA to post all
RFQs with ABCs of
P50,000 and above
in the PhilGEPS’
website for seven (7)
days in compliance
with RA 9184.

The Mana%t
ensured N 1

neces
docume

were
and

to the

A
\&,

Fully Implemented

4. Traveli (penses
totaling P .00 claimed
by office employees in

ere not in

ac e with Section 4 of
Ex&ve Order (EO) No.

ated March 23, 2004
e four officials attended

conferences/trainings

abroad  even without
approved  authority  in
violation of LWUA

Memorandum Circular No.
010-10 and LWUA
Resolution 182 series of
2010.

FAR
2018
Obs.
No. 4
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Status of

Corporate Operating Budget
of P36,461,977.83 contrary
to the provisions of Sections
4(1) and 4(8) of PD No.

\?~

Audit Observations and Ref Management’s Implementation/
Recommendations ’ Action Reason for Partial/
: Non Implementation
We  recommended  that The District | Fully Implemented
Management  direct the currently applies the
concerned  officials  and new travel rates
employees to strictly observe based on EO No. 77
the provisions of EO No. dated March 15,
298, LWUA Memorandum 2019 which &
Circular No. 010-10 and amended EO 298
LWUA  Resolution 182 dated March 23, < '
series of 2010. 2004. In addition, all \
officials and
employees who will
be on official travel
abroad are required
to secure pe
from LWUA.
Ji Ten expense accounts | FAR Q
aggregating to | 2018
P49 374,000.03 exceeded | Obs.
their approved 2018 | No. 5

1445. C?
We recommend
Management —
(a) into The  Management | Fully Implemented
con51 ratlo he availability strictly  monitored
fore incurring the expenses based
s in conformity on the approved
0 ections 4(1) and 4(8) budget.  However,
@) No. 1445; for expenses which
exceeded the budget
(b) implement cost- necessary in the | Fully Implemented
saving measures and stricter operations, the
budgetary controls to keep district requested for
expenses within the re-alignment of
approved limit; budget instead of
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. Status of

Audit Observations and Ref. Management’s Implementation/
Recommendations ) Action Reason for Partial/
: Non Implementation
supplemental
(c) formulate a more budget. Fully Implemented
realistic budget, taking into
consideration the projected
earnings and the needed &

programs and projects to
improve its operations; and

(d)  prepare a \nplemented
supplemental  budget or

augment funds/realign

savings in case of budget 6 ’
overruns in accordance with \

Section 3.3 of DBM CC No.
20 dated April 27, 2005.

6. Analysis of the Due | F 4
to BIR account revealed over 18

or under remittance of | O
monthly  taxes  withhe .6
ranging from a negafiye

amount of P593,174.

P327,230.30 contra to
Philippine counting
Standards 1 -
Presentati Financial

nd Conceptual
for Financial

recommended that the
eneral Manager through
the Division Manager -
General Accounting to —

(a) continue to  be The Division | Fully Implemented
compliant with the BIR Manager — General

regulations on the Accounting

withholding and remittance continuously

of the appropriate taxes monitored the BIR

within the prescribed period; remittances in
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. Status of

Audit Observations and Ref Management’s Implementation/
Recommendations g Action Reason for Partial/

: Non Implementation

and compliance with
BIR regulations.

(b) require the Senior Partially Implemented
Corporate Budget Analyst to K
be more cautious in Reite in

recording the taxes withheld
and remitted to avoid errors
that may result in the under
or over remittances of taxes
withheld in compliance with

Obseryation No. 5 of

&

PAS 1 and Conceptual %
Framework for Financial \
Reporting.

7. Analysis of the Due | FAR »Q

to GSIS account revealed | 201

over or under remittance of S.

monthly contributions | No.

ranging from a negat. 'v?\

amount of P32,678.

P38,448.37  contr

Philippine Accotmbing

Standards a | —

Presentation nancial

Statements onceptual

Framew or Financial

Repor

W&commended that the
ral Manager through
Division Manager -

General Accounting to —

(a) fully and
continuously remit on time
the GSIS contributions in
compliance with the
provisions of Sections 5 and
6 of RA No. 8291; and

The  Management | Fully Implemented
continuously
monitored the

remittance of GSIS

premiums.
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Audit Observations and
Recommendations

Ref.

Management’s
Action

Status of
Implementation/
Reason for Partial/
Non Implementation

(b)  require the Corporate
Budget Assistant to be more
cautious in recording the
transactions to avoid errors
that could result in the under
or over remittances of
contributions withheld in
compliance with PAS 1 and
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting.

Partially Implemented

Reiterated n
Observation No. 6 of
CY 20 !

(

o

S
Ws; and

8. The District
attributed to Gender and
Development (GAD) for CY
2018  the  amount of
P14,230,000.00  equivalent
to 7.06% of the total budget
of  P201.565 Million
pursuant to Item Nos. 2.
and 6 of the PCW-NE.
DBM Joint Circular
2012-01.

We reco ed that
Managemen
a) oEnue to set aside
r attiibute "at least 5% of the

get for GAD which
& e integrated in its

4

(b) implement all GAD
PPAs identified by the
District for CY 2019 and

The  Management
continued to
attribute at least 5%
of its budget to
support gender and
development

programs, activities
and projects.

The District, through
its GAD Focal Point
System continued to

onwards. spearhead in
mainstreaming
gender perspective

Fully Implemented

Fully Implemented
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Status of

2017 transactions totaled
P3,150,639.50 or a total
amount of P22,647,903.97 as
of December 31, 2018. There
were disallowable
disbursements amounting to
P2,973,860.90 in the audit of )
transactions for CY 2018.

We  recommended
Management  requi
officials and
determined i
of

ause the

he /' amount
d by the
isallowance to

n appeal within the

m of six months after

ipt thereof pursuant to

ection I, Rule V of the

2009 Revised Rules of

Procedures of the
Commission on Audit.

We also recommended that
Management —

(a) file a Petition for
_ Review within the remaining

0

¥

The District already
filed an appeals for
the disallowances to
proper agencies. In
addition, the District

already stopped
granting cited
disallowances.

Audit Observations and Ref Management’s Implementation/
Recommendations ) Action Reason for Partial/
Non Implementation
in the - department
policies, plans and
programs to be
incorporated in its
annual planning.
9 The  disallowances | FAR \
issued for CYs 2012-2015 | 2018 %
transactions fotaled | Obs. &
P19,497,064.47 while | No.
disallowances issued for CY | 10

Fully Implemented

Fully Implemented
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- Status of

Audit Observations and Ref Management’s Implementation/
Recommendations ’ Action Reason for Partial/

Non Implementation

period of six months
provided in Section 4, Rule
V of the 2009 Revised Rules

of Procedures of the COA

for their Appeals that were

denied by COA Regional < ,
Office No. I11; and \

ially Implemented

(b)  comply strictly with
laws, rules and regulations to

avoid disallowances in the & Reiterated n
future transactions. \ Observation No. 9 of

CY 2019 FAR.
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